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Child Protective Service ig a specialized child welfare service
that is time limited. It is not intended to address all of the
family's problems, but rather to resolve the most critical
problem(s) which will reduce the risk of further harm to the child.

Confidential Report of the
Department of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S No. : -

98-34
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SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE FAMILY HOME
REPORT; EXHIBIT A

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991
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SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE FAMILY HOME REPORT
May 12, 1998

THE DEPARTMENT BELIEVES THAT REASONABLE EFFORTS MUST BE MADE TO
PRESERVE THE FAMILY UNIT, TO PREVENT UNNECESSARY PLACEMENT OF A
CHILD, AND RETURN THE CHILD TO THE FAMILY BY PROVIDING APPROPRIATE,
AVAILABLE SERVICES TO THE FAMILY MEMBERS IN A TIMELY MANNER.

The following information concerns the current situation relevant
to each of the 14 guideline criteria set forth in HRS 587-25.

On or about April 21, 1998, a Child Protective Service Team Meeting
was held. After some discussion among the members, recommendations

maintain constancy in the school lives of Note is
made that should not be returned to the parents if

Peter Jr. is not found. Special services were suggested as home-
tased services, therapeutic aid, counseling for the parents,
utilization of school counselor services while school is 1in

session.



A second recommendation of the CPS team was regarding the role of
the Hawaii Police Department to work closely with DHS. The
Detective continues to be in contact with DHS social worker almost

on a daily basis.

A third recommendation was that visitation be facilitated between

and the parents. On Friday, April 24, 1998 the
first visit was had for both parents, although Father was late due
to returning from a Honolulu trip with HPD. The next visits were
scheduled for april 27, 1998 and April 28, 1998. On April 27,
1998, the foster parent had been informed to bring on
the following day. Therefore, Jaylin and Peter Kema talked for
approximately forty-five minutes with the Child and Family Service
homebased social worker who began working with them on April 24,
1998 focusing on parenting and family adjustment issues.

Reccmmendations regarding —needs include: The
provision of psychological treatment for regarding the
disappearance of their brother, peter, Jr. In this regard, the
medical doctor, Dr. Natalie Delue, of Bay Clinic recommended that

be provided with psychiatric counseling. Plan:
Although three psychiatrists, Drs. Dennis Lee, Henry Yang and Lane
D. Matsumura, were asked to provide psychiatric evaluation, they
declined. Dr. Steven Choi, psychologist, agreed to complete
evaluations on the entire family on June 1 ang 2, 1998. Other
recommendations made by the team are contained in the Conference

Report submitted as Exhibit A.

On or about April 22, 1998, a telephone conference was held between
the Honolulu Program Development Supervisor, the Hawaii Branch
Administrator, the East Hawaii Intake/Assessment Unit Supervisor
and assigned social worker. The decision was that the social
worker would place into a foster home immediately. oOn
or about April 22, 19398, at approximately 1052 hours, DHS social
worker and Ssa, accompanied by an HPD Sergeant and Officer, arrived
at the Kaumana Elementary School and met briefly with the
Principal, Ms. Julie Ignacio. were transported by DHS
to the DHS office. After having lunch, they were transported by
the foster parent to the foster home. The foster parents are

transporting —each day, to Kaumana Elementary School.

On April 23, 1998, 2 medical doctor who provided medical
examination of the relayed individual concerns for

each child. Her primary concerns were that had a
/ Suggesting

sexual abuse. She found fthat
' but not what she would consider Strictly "normal"

for a vear old. Dr. Delue was concerned that have

W asthma machine, which was brought for the child to the office
by Mother on April 23, 1998. While effort was made to coordinate

a sexX abuse examination on the evening of April 23, 1998, the

2



examination was completed by the SANE, sex abuse nurse examiner, at
Hilo Medical Center, according to protocol. Post examination, the

nurse made it clear to DHS and to Detective Randy Medeiros, that
while the “ and other
anatomy was in the natural state for 2 .. The )
was attributed to poor hygiene on the part of the (NN

@GNNp The allegations of sex abuse were unconfirmed.

The“
were placed out of the home of Jaylin Acol Kema and Peter Kema on

April 22, 1998. They were placed in a licensed foster home which
is approximately eighteen miles from the parent's home.

Jaylin Acol Kema and Peter Kema, Sr. continue to reside together.

They have lived alone since the m
“ were placed out of their
home on April 22, 1998. have had supervised
visits about three times a week with the Kema iarents. L

ave also visited weekly with W father of
who has expressed an interest in obtaining

custody of his biological children. DHS Hilo requested a homestudy
be conducted by the Oahu office on _ home on 0Oahu to
determine suitability for possible placement of
with him.

RECOMMENDATION:

a. The award of Temporary Foster Custody to DHS of L Y
be continued;

b. Temporary Foster Custody of Peter Kema, Jr. be continued.

ful l,Y submitted by,

MSW, LSW
Social Worker, East Hawaii
Intake/Assessment Unit

I have reviewed this document.

0513/ 9%

upervisor Date
Representing the Department of Human Services




MULTIDISCIPLINARY TEAM CONFERENCE REPORT

THIS REPORT IS CONFIDENTIAL.

CHILDREN: BIRTHDATES: WHEREABOUTS

Kema, Jr, Peter 05/01/91 Unknown

CASE NAME: Kema, Jaylin

FAMILY MEMBERS:
Mother: Kema, Jaylin
Father: Kema, Sr., Peter

CONF DATE; 04/15/98, 2:00-4-00p - DHS Conference Room

CASE WORKER: Hilo Intake and Investigations

PARTICIPANTS:

- CPS Investigations

- DHS supervisor TA CWSSA

B. Wilson M.D. - Pediatric Consultant W. Jaeckle, Ph.D. - Psychologist Consultant
K. Rusnak, M.S., R.N.- Nursing Consultant - Grimmel, ACSW - Social Work Consultant
N. Higa, BA. - Team Coordinator

GUESTS:

Edith Kawai, GAL
Christopher Barthel, Ph.D. - previous therapist for parents

THIS REPORT IS C ONSULTATIVE IN NATURE AND CASE MANAGEMENT DECISIONS ARE LEF T
UPTO THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Team analyses and recommendations are made based upon information made available to the Team at the time of
the Team Conference by DHS-CPS, and other collateral contacts. Team Recommendations may need to be
modified in light of new information, available resources, and the realities of service delivery constraints,

EXHIBIT "A"




Multidisciplinary Team Conterence Report
Kema, Jaylin
Page 2

REASON FOR TEAM

The purpose of this Team Conference was to assess the reason(s) for the parents’ reluctance in providing
information regarding the whereabouts of their son, Peter Jr.; and to determine if the S
safe in their parents’ care.

CASE BACKGROUND

Please see DHS case records for complete case background.

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

Compiaint/Report Date Tvpe of Maitreatment Children Confirmed

May 8, 1991 Physical Abuse d: Yes

August 12,1991 Physical Abuse Peter Jr. Yes

Apnl 4, 1997 Physical Abuse Peter Jr. No

June 18, 1997 Physical Abuse Peter Jr. No

Past Teams: No . Jurisdiction: Family Supervision

Familv Tvoe: Married Medical Care Provider: Pahoa Family Health Center

DHS INVOLVEMENT

DHS has been involved with this family since May of 1991, whe called DHS in

Kona to report bruises on the cheeks of o NNRTRTNENGE: “hat the bruises

were from Peter Kema, Sr.(mother’s boyfriend), but they would not repeat this to the CPS worker. The case

was referred to DHS in Hilo, where the family resided, and the report was confirmed. ey
- In

were taken into protective custody and placed with
August of 1991 DHS received a report of physical abuse to Peter Jr. The injuries included a fractured left

knee as well as old fractures. ~Although it was not determined who the perpetrator was, the child was being
cared for by only his parents at that time. Peter Jr. was placed with his siblings at the home o

S rc returned to their parents’ custody in June of 1995. By that time Peter Kema, Sr. and mother
(Jayiin Acol) were married and had QNSNS

On April 4. 1997, DHS received a report from a relative, that Peter Jr. had a broken arm (from father). It was
further reported that Peter Jr. had to sit on the floor at mealtime (unlike his siblings), wore long sleeve shirts all
the time, and had been seen eating “puppy shit”. No further information was provided by other relatives and

this was not confirmed.

[n June of 1997 the report was received by DHS and a home visit was made. The family had to be tracked
down toilowing a move and mother and N V<< not home when the DHS social worker arrived at the
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CASE BACKGROUND (Continued)

DHS INVOLVEMENT (Continued)

new home. An appointment was made and the family came to the DHS office ( without Peter Jr.) in early Juiv

of 1997 following two canceled appointments. Family members stated that they had not seen Peter Jr. since
December of 1996 and when asked about this, mother stated that Peter Jr. was with a paternal aunt and unci2
until mid-August. An appointment was inadvertently set for August 15, 1997 for mother to bring Peter Jr. :n.

but as this was Admissions Day the DHS office was closed. The DHS social worker made a home visit ‘a

August of 1997 but found the windows tightly shut and no answer at the door, although there were two cars in

the garage and the clothes dryer was running.

t school but they both stated that Peter 't

In October of 1997 the social worker interviewed
said that g had

was in Kona with Aunt Nani (Lee Ann Kobayashi and husband J ay Kobayashi).
seen Peter Jr. as recently as September, andiiillil said @ had last seen him in June of 1997,

[n December 1997, mother’s s worker lett a message for the DHS social worker that mother
had reported Peter Jr. as having moved out of the home on J uly 17, 1997, and moving to Cahu in October of
1997. In December 1997, the till reported that they did not know where Peter Jr. was.
and it was suggested by the DHS social worker that they file a missing person report. On December 29, 1667
the social worker contacted a private school, suggested by the extended family, to see if Peter Jr. was registerad
there. This school, Punana Leo School, as well as the DOE had no records of Peter Jr. having been registerad

there.

On January 8 1998, the social worker (with a police officer) went t0 the tamily home but there was no answer
and all the windows were shut. On January 9, 1998 the social worker and a police officer went to the home
again. This time mother was home and came out to talk to them. Mother appeared to have gained quite a bit
of weight. Mother expressed anger and dislike but it wasn't until the
social worker and police officer questioned her apparent indifference to her son’s whereabouts that mother
began to cry. Mother finally agreed to make a missing person report on behaif of her son. o

On January 21, 1998 at the Hilo Police Station mother told the DHS social worker and Detective Nojiri that she
had only found out the day before that her husband had given their son to a woman, Auntie Rose. on Oahu.

During a separation between mother and father, Peter Sr. had taken the child to Oahu with him and signed 2
paper giving the child to this Auntie Rose. Mother does not know Auntie Rose and states that father told her
Peter Jr. was with relatives and would be placed into school in Xona in August of 1997, When Deteciive
Nojin approached Peter Sr. in the waiting area to speak with him. mother stated that father had chest

had to go to an emergency doctor’s appointment.

pains and

During the visit mother stated that thev wers

On February 26, 1998 the social worker visited the family home.
Ms. Makuakane is a Hawaiian womaun

waiting for a letter trom Auntie Rose. whose name s Rose Makuakane.
Known for her skills in Hawaiian crafts.

=
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CASE BACKGROUND (Continued)

DHS INVOLVEMENT (Continued)

On March 9, 1998 father and mother came into the DHS office for an appointment for Peter Sr. to speak with
the DHS worker following two appointments which mother had canceled for father. Father stated that before
his mother died, a man named Moses Makuakane had lived with them for five years. When his mother died
(when he was twelve), Moses had his “cousin” Rose Makuakane stay with them for two weeks. Father did not
see Rose again until September 1997 when he was on Oahu with Peter Jr. Father states that at that time he
was sleeping on the grass in A’ala Park with other homeless people, and sharing a tent with eightesn other
people. He says that this was not a place for Peterboy, and when he ran out of food stamps he gave Peter Jr. to
Rose Makuakane with a letter stating his intentions to let her keep the child, as he could not take care of him
and was giving up his parental rights. He said that Rose wanted to move to Florida where it would be cheaper
to live and she could sell her hats on the beach to make a living. The police have not been able to find a person

who exists with the name of Rose Makuakane.

QUESTIONS TO BE ADDRESSED

I. Is there anything about the parents that has been missed that might help to shed light on their actions”

What, if any, vested interest do the parents have in not disclosing the child’s whereabouts?

Are there any family dynamics that may affect—still in the home?

4. Is this home, and are these parents safe?

N

[¥9)

CASE BACKGROUND (Continued)

SCCIAL HISTORY/ENVIRONMENT

Mother and father have been together for approximately eight years, during which time they had stillborn twins
day old and have had D\ -

at five months gestation, had a stillborn daughter, a son die at one
away.  These parents have not been tested for drug use and mother denies any physical abuse in their

relationship since the early part, and denies any abuse to WSNSINSNNIN It is unclear how or why mother and
father do not exhibit appropriate regret at the loss of their child, and why they are unwilling to disciose anv

information that would be useful in finding Peter Jr.
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CASE BACKGROUND (Continued)

SOCIAL HISTORY/ENVIRONMENT

One worker states that these parents are naive and inexperienced rather than manipulative. Due to the father’:
dysfunctional childhood historv and their recent experiences with DHS, these parents may be feeling
intimidated. They were both said to be cooperative with services. There were some problems during the time
S o Wi _ and this had to do with issues berween family members as
well as mother’s difficult pregnancy with Mother is at risk for gestational diabetes and was 10t well
during her pregnancy, which, in addition to financiaj constraints, affected their ability to visit SN

Kona.

Mother is very angry at“due to her own childhood molestation by a maternai
uncle that she states { i ould not protect her from. SO : s that she was unaware of the abuse
and that Jaylin only asked that uncle not stay in her room when he visited, she never told her of the abuse.

Jaylin says that she tol jgnored it. As an adolescent Jaylin become very sexually promiscuous.
and had her first child by the time she was 16

Father’s history includes the death of both his father and then his mother at (Peter Sr.'s) ages of 5 and 12

Peter Sr. and his older sister Rache! ended up with a heavy-handed family in Volcano. He had trouble at
school, was depressed, angry and was using drugs. Peter Sr. was referred to Dr. Barthel for counseling and
although he managed to be responsive and got some help from the therapy, Dr. Barthel maintains that when
Peter Sr. got overwhelmed he wouid fall apart. These lapses would include increased depression, drug use and
his grades dropping. Dr. Barthel suggests that this is most likely still Peter Sr.’s pattern.  He further contends
that Peter Sr. is highly sensitive, paranoid, and fears having this family torn apart. When concerns were raised
as to why Peter Jr. appears to have been the child targeted for abuse when he was Peter Sr.'s birth son, it was
suggested that Peter Sr. was never certain if Peter Jr. was in fact his son or Mr. Coulter s (i NGNS

Sorm.

When SR were returned to their parents’ custody in 1995, it was due to their work with Dr. Barthel and
participation in Ho oponopono, their having secured a well-kept house, and having had S 1nd no
reports of abuse with her. When G, < rcrumed. Peter St and Jaylin went into isolation with
@B and would not allow visitation with the SIS 1 spite of Dr. Barthel’s vehement ¢xhortations that
this would be harmful to GEESSSENE®. who were bonded to the i ro

I ;i | in the home appear to be healthy and well. Their attendance and grades at school are 200d.
and they seem happy. do however seem to have been coached on what to sav to DHS

and other social service people, although. there are sull some discrepancies in facts between what thev <av and
what their parents say with regard 1o Peter Jr."s fall rrom the trechouse and when they last saw Peter Jr.
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CASE ANALYSIS
Children’s Status. Functioning, Needs

Phvsical Starus:

*No medical records could be obtained for Peter Jr. at this time

1. Prenatal. Postnartum. Infancv. Childhood History
Peter: Muitiple fractures at four months and possibly a fracture at five years - most likely result of
abuse. Possibly other physical and emotional abuse.

5

Well Babv/Child Status
Immunizations up to date.

3. General Health
Overall good. Scabies - almost resolved.
=)verall good. Scabies - almost resolved., slightly overweight,
. Ovcrall good. Overweight.

4. Medical Conditions. if anv

S, 5ronchitis and upper respiratory infections.

5. Visual/Auditory Status
SN Nomal
SO Normal

Ry Normal

6. Other
Peter: Has been missing for over a year.
Developmental:

1. Normal/Abnormal Growth
Normal

SEE. Short stature, overweight
@ Short stature, overweight

As mother is of short stature also. this may be a genetic predisposition rather than a growth abnormality.
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CASE ANALYSIS
Children’s Status. Functioning, Needs

Developmental (Continued)

2

r“n

Normal Development/Abnormal Development/Delavs
ol  Normal (with available information)

S \ormal (with available information)
Y, Normal (with available information)

Psvchosocial:

Not much is known about il psvchosocial functioning other than what has been ascertained {rom

school records and a few brief interactions with the DHS social worker.

1. Description of current Emotional status. Stable vs. Unstable.

seem to be happy

(&

Adaptabie to changes vs. difficulty in transitions

JEE N - <1 to be fairly adaptable to changes.

Resiliencv: High vs Low

N et :;pc:: to be resilient

Ability to emotionallv connect to others: Trust/Mistrust.

(V9]

+=

o : < <1 [0 have the same mistrust of outsiders as their parents”

Children’s Functional Analvsis:

Name of Child Level of FunctioningsNeeds

{ ) Special Needs- Emotionai {
{ ) Special Needs- Emouonal ¢ 1 Low Funcuoning

s 1d —

( ) Speciai Needs- Emotional ¢ 1 Low Functioning tX) Average Functioning
Low Functioning tX) Average Funcuoning
( X') Average Functioning

¢ ) High Funcucniny
¢ ) High Funcucninyg

¢} Hign Funcuoniny
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CASE ANALYSIS
Careraker’s Status. Functioning, Needs:
Strengths:
Peter Xema. Sr. Javlin Kema
None known None known
Weakness/Limitations:
Peter Kema. Sr. Javlin Kema
Poor coping skills Poor coping skills
Inadequate parenting knowledge and skills Inadequate parenting knowledge and skills
Violent/aggressive behaviors Difficulty forming adequate interpersonal relationships
Poor impulse control Highly defensive
Difficulty forming adequate interpersonal relationships Unwilling or unable to accept responsibility for child
Highly defensive maltreatment
Unwilling or unable to accept responsibility for Limited attachment to child (Peter)
child maltreatment Inaccurate perceptions of chiid (Peter)
Limited attachment to children Emotional problems

Negative perceptions of child (Peter)
Emotional problems

Caretakers Functional Analvsis:

Name of Caretaker ~ Level of Functioning/Needs
1. Peter Kema, Sr. (X) Dysfunctional ( ) Low Functioning ( ) Average ( ) High Functioning
2. Jaylin Kema (X) Dysfunctional ( ) Low Functioning ( ) Average ( ) High Functioning

As a couple they are resistant, angry, and uncooperative with the system. As individuals they deceive each
other, and show little concern about locating Peter Jr.. There is a disconcerting possibility that Peter Jr. is dead.
Their secrecy makes it difficult to determine the extent of impact on the remaining @ :d scems to be a
function of their stress level. This couple falls apart under pressure, and father can be explosive towards a8
. Javiin. and himself. As the CPS and police investigations move forward there will be greater pressure

on this couple.
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SOCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIAL SUPPORT SYSTEM

Based on the analysis of this family’s social environment and support system the following are the protective
and risk factors in this case:

Protective Factors

Adequate living environment: sufficient space, adequate hygiene.

. R doing well in school.

9 —

Risk Factors

Caretakers lack extended familv member able to assist in care of (s Some extended family may be

able to assist but parents will not allow contact.
Caretakers have a history of inadequate or dysfunctional parent-child relationships.

—

5

3. Caretakers have dysfunctional, maladaptive and/or abusive couple relationship.

4. Caretakers are unwilling to participate in services with community services providers and follow through
with services is poor.

5. There are limited and poor social attachments including poor caretaker-child attachment.

6. Caretakers have been enmeshed in a maladaptive and abusive environment.

7. Six year old, who was physicaily abused at 4 months and possibly at five years, has been missing for over a
vear. There are serious questions as to whether the child is still alive.

Serious concerns as to the safety of the remaining ¢lln the home.
9. Father’s explosiveness is a concern for all family members in the home.

%

Social System Analvsis:

Overall the current social environment and social support system is:

(X ) Substandard/Dysfunctional ( ) Minimally Functional ( )Low ( ) Average
( ) Highly Supportive without additional social services ( ) Highly Supportive only with additional social services
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TEAM ASSESSMENT

A multidisciplinary Team Conference was held to assist the DHS-CWS social worker in decision-making

regarding the parents’ lack of concerns for, or disclosure about, their missing child; six year old Peter Kema.
Jr., who has been missing for over a year. Other decisions concerned the safety of SIS emaining

in the home, and the possible course of action regarding the parents and @l during the investigation.
Based on the available information presented during the team conference Sjiiiillilliare average functioning
SN ho require average care in all areas of functioning. The caretakers are assessed to be dysfunctional
and have limited ability to care foniijlllllnecds. The social support system contributes to the caretakers’

dysfunction.

Y. h:ve been raised in an abusive and coercive environment. From an early age lG_—_——"i
were the victims of violence and emotional abuse, as evidenced by the bruising on (g ENEGNGGG:

S at ages four and two, to Peter Jr.’s new and old fractures at age four months.  Further, although the
(spiral) fractures were caused by twisting of the limbs, both parents continually blame ¢S ll» umping on
Peter Jr. as the cause of these injuries; this is quite an emotional burden for o carry. To provide
explanations for later injuries to Peter Jr. (injuries to his arm), appear to have been coached
on what to say, adding more emotional burdens for NS Although it has been brought to the

attention of the Team that g remaining in the home appear healthy and unharmed, it might be
prudent to remember that their brother is missing and the parents seem to be the perpetrators of this. As Peter
Jr. was the child who appeared to have most of the injuries, it would be very reasonable for QSIS (0

conclude that being out of favor with father and mother could indeed make you “go away”.

Further information brought to the Team confirms the history of father’s propensity towards violence when he
is under pressure. Rather than conforming when under scrutiny, father falls apart and becomes extremely, and
very rapidly volatile. It was further stated that it is unlikely that father’s methods u{ coping have changed over
time. Raising children seemed to be enough of a stressor for father to (allegedly) abuse JJJINNNER With
CPS interventions and investigations into Peter Jr.’s disappearance, the likelihood of father decompensating is
very probable, and with father’s history the probability of his abusing a family member is very high.

The Team members were not in a consensus regarding the removal of the « R om the home,
although the three members who advocated this course of action were quite vehement in their
recommendations. The fact that these parents have a missing child, are not producing this child, and have not
since August 1997, when a broken arm was reported, is of extreme concern. Given the history of serious

physical abuse and reported abuse, the disappearance of Peter Jr. is very disturbing, indeed.  There are also
serious concerns in terms of the safety o based on the information provided to the Team with

regard to this family’s history and abuse. These parents had (gave birth to) Peter Jr., and by four months of age
he had muitiple spiral fractures and was removed from the home along with SN~ ho ‘vere

previously removed due to physical abuse. N vere returned to the parents in June of 1995 and by
Apnl 1997 Peter Jr. reportedly had a broken arm from father, and by August 1997 he was missing. Based on

this information it is strongly recommended by these members that sl NN bc

removed from the family home pending the investigation into Peter Jr.’s disappearance. The fourth member
recommended strong tamily supervision and daily accountability and support for this family during this
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TEAM ASSESSMENT (Continued)

stressful time. This member states that because there are no allegations of abuse or neglect to GERNENN,
and this family is apparently doing better than they ever have (with regard to o8
& therefore, there is no cause to remove them from the home. This member has concerns that
objectivity is being obscured by suspicions and other recent cases in the news. Also stated by this member is
the need to arrive at a better understanding of our criteria, such as; at what level of probability do we use
separation as a solution rather than seeking other alternatives (homebased services and family monitoring).
The Team member who recommended the latter, also suggested that removingGillllllll might be a catalvst
for father’s violent outbursts. All Team members agree unanimously that the search for Peter Jr. should be

carried out expeditiously and vigorously.

™ < most likely been abused and/or been witness to repeated acts of violence and abuse toward
other members of their family, up to, and including the removal of their brother from the family.
@ o not yet understand or comprehend the dynamics of the situation in their family; but they do nesd to
be provided with a safe, stable environment with protection, emotional nurturance, and the continuity of care

and extended family that has been missing.

These parents have been provided with numerous services over a long period of time, and have seemingly
complied. At the very least, in view of their lack of concern and active response to their missing child, it is
likely that there have been no improvements in their parenting abilities. At the very worst, if they are actively
involved in their child’s disappearance, the safety of the remaining children is of the gravest concem.

The family is, therefore, assessed to be:

( ) Safe/Adequate ( X) Safe/Adequate only with Services (X) Unsafe/Inadequate ( ) Other: List

one Team member three Team members
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TEAM RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Placement Recommendations.

A. NN P!acement together in a foster home in Hilo to provide safety for gl

@ (acilitate easy visitation with the parents, and maintain some sense of normalcy in SREERENEEND
school/peer routines during the investigation into Peter Jr.'s whereabouts. @RS should not be

returned to the parents if Peter Jr. is not found.
OR

B. Keep SR, (n the home and provide services that will monitor the family, provide dailv
accountability of the family after the school year ends, and keep GSSNSNNSENR safe from any explosive acting

out on father’s part. Some possibilities include: homebased services, a therapeutic aid, counseling for the
parents, and school counselors until school ends.

2. Legal Recommendations.

A. The police department should be urged to expeditiously investigate the disappearance of Peter Kema.
Jr.. The uncertainty regarding his status makes decisions regarding WguS——_—_—_GG_GA . crv difficult.
The police should be required to attend case conferences and provide the current status and updates on

this case.

3. Visitation Recommendations.

A. Visitation with both the parents and RN hould be facilitated to provide e\

with support and a social network during the investigation into Peter Jr.’s disappearance.

Children’s Recommendations:

1. Psychological treatment/support.
Desired Outcomes:  To provide support for 44N with regard to Peter’s disappearance, the disruptions

in the family, and any abuse they have witnessed’'experienced.

2. Review of all medical and hospital records. including Dr. Sugai in Kona.

o

Desired Outcomes:  To determine eliNgy health. the details of Peter Jr.'s arm injury, and any other
unexplained injuries that may have occurred.

3. Speak with Dr. McCallister regarding the visit to the Pahoa Clinic to examine Peter Jr.’s arm..
Desired Outcome: To determine the extent and evaluation of the injury.
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Children’s Recommendations (Continued)

4. Contact all of the orthopedic doctors in town to discover if Peter Jr. did have a cast put on his arm in

between November of 1996 and April, 1997.
Desired Outcome:  To determine the extent and evaluation of Peter Jr.’s injury.

5. Support from outside agencies.
Desired Outcomes:  To support this family regardless of whether Sl remain in the home or are
placed into foster care.

6. Obtain copies of miscarriage and death records of children stillborn and/or miscarried by Jaylin.
Desired Outcomes:  To determine the causes, and if domestic violence was involved.

Caretaker’s Recommendations

Peter Sr. and Javiin

1. Psychological evaluations _
Desired Outcome: To determine the level of parents’ functioning and ability to provide a safe home for -

SEEEE» To gain an understanding of Peter Sr.’s motives in giving his son away.

2. Psychological treatment

e

Desired Outcome: To provide support for these parents during the stressful time of the investigation, and also if
SR < taken out of the home. To help these parents resolve some of their own issues related to their
families of origin, abuse, relationships, and parenting skills. Dr. Barthel is willing to be this support person.

3. Review medical records
Desired Outcomes:  To determine health and medical history.

4. Check with airlines for reservations/ticket purchases for Peter Jr. and Sr. between July and August of 1997.
Desired Outcomes:  To verify if Peter Sr. and Jr. did indeed travel between Oahu and Hawaii at the times he

has stated.

5. Possible re-teaming in the next month.
Desired Outcome: To re-assess the situation.
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Social Svstem Recommendations

1. Visitation withggilljlllls and other extended family members.
Desired Outcome: To provide support to GNP and a sense of family connection throughout this stresstul
time and hopefuily into the future.

Submitted by: 7Z""‘ % ﬁéj‘/ Approved by:
Nancy J. Higa Mary Jo Westmoreland
Team Coordinator KCPC HI Branch Administrator



KAPI’OLANI CHILD PROTECTION CENTER
794 A Kilauea Avenue, Hilo, Hawaii 96720 808/ 934-9875

04/28/98

Enclosed please find an updated cover page from the Kema CPS
Multidisciplinary Team Report dated 04/15/98. Please note that Mr. Aley Auna, Esq.

from the Attorney Generals Office did not attend this meeting. 1 am sorry for any
inconvenience this may have caused.

Thank You,

A

Nancy J. Higa
Team Coordinator




CER ICA OF SERVIC

I hereby certify that on May 13, 1998, the foregoing
will be duly served upon the following parties by the method

indicated below:

By: By:
U.S. Mail = Hand-Delivery

CRAIG SADAMOTO, ESQ. X

Attorney for Mother

NATHAN BRENNER, ESQ. X

STEVEN D. STRAUSS, ESQ. X

Attorney for Peter Kema, Sr.

EDITH KAWAI, ESQ. X

Guardian A4 Litem

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, May 13, 1998

‘] N///\ B
ALEY K.—XUNX, JR.
Deputy Attorney Gerneral
Attorney for The Department of
Human Services
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CRUCELE D=2 LIMA & SHIROMA
Attorneys at Law

NATHAN R. BRENNER
10 Shipwan Street
Hilo, Hawaii 96720
Telechone:  1898) 363-7949

ACTaTTey for o —

6384-2

RITURNEY GEMERAL HILO

8089328887 FP.82
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IN THE FAMILV COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATZ CF HAwWATI

In the Interast of

PETZR KZMA, JR.
3orn on May 1, 1991

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

re-s vos. NN

96-014

MOTION FOR TERMINATICON OF
TEMPORARY FOSTER CUSTODY;
MEMORANDUM 1IN SUPPORT;
DECLARATION OF COUNSEL;
NOTICE OF MOTION
CERIIFICATE OF SERVICE

Judge Bern H. Gaddig
Hearing: s5/19/9a
Time: 1 p.m.

Comres now, ~ by and through his attorney NATHAN R.

BRENNER, ang hereby brings this Motion pursuant to Rules 5.7 and 10 of the Family

Court Ruies and §587-53 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes as amended, and moves this

Honorabie Court to terminate temoorary foster custcdy.
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MAT—18—98 BI 123 AM ATTORNEY GENMERAL HILOD 8889338887

This motion is based cn the record, declaration of counsel, and the record and

files of this case.

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, May 15, 1998.

N SN W N

NATHAN R. BRENNER




FiMT~15=298 U323 AaM ATTORNEY GEHNERAL HILO 8889333887

CRUDZILE [E LIMA & SHIROMA
Attorreys at Law

NATHEAN R. BRENNER 6584-0
10 Shipman Street

Hilo, Hawa:i 98720
Telephone: (803 389-7707

Astorney for

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF T™HE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

rc-s Nos. R

88-C34

In the Interest of

o ———
-

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May -, 19%1

MEMORANDUM (N SUPPORT

MEMCORANDUM IN SUPPQRT

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

I Facts;

All pleadings filed and submitted into evidence urder FC-S Gl anc FC-S 91-036
shall be incurporated by reference as to a factual basis, although the accuracy of said
facts comprising the pleadings is in dispute and will be subject to cross-examinatior,
I, Questions presented:

1) Where is the "Family Home"?

2) s there a threat of Imminent harm ir the “Family Home"?
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3)

4)

il

2)
3)
4)

V.

Should Temporary Foster Custody be revoked and EENDESet.ned to their

biclogical and tegal custodian (I G_—G—_—

Has DHS made "reasonatle efforts" to reunify NN with their own family?

Short answars to Questions Presented:

o

No
Yes

No

Rule of Law;

Pursuant to HRS §587 and 42 USC §671 (a)(15) "reasonable efforts” must be made by

the State to prevent removal from the child's home, or after removal, to reunify the child

with the child's own family.

V.
a)
b)
c)

d)

Analysis:

W < the undisputed QT
WD s the logal custodian of IR

DHS has continuously failed to protect (g IMAfrom harm.

DHS has failed to make any efforts to place tQ I with their natural father
prior to assuming Temporary Foster Custody.

DHS had made no efforts to place (R w'th their naturai father prior to
May 15, 1998.

There is no threat of harm in the family home of (- o L
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D FORTHWITH anp (Y
HE FAMILY HCME OF

(15) OF THE HEARING OF THIS MOTION.
Hilo, Hawaji, May 15, 1998.

NATHAN R BRENNER ————

WITHIN FIFTEEN DAYS
ODATED:

- 86
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IN THE FAMILY CCURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT
STATE OF HAWATT

FC-& Nos, -

9E-34

In the Interest of

o

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1¢91

DECLARATICN OF COUNSEL

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

RECI ARATION OF COUNSEL

STATE OF HAWAII )
) SS:
COUNTY OF HAWAII ]
NATHAN 2. BREMNZR, being first duly sworn upon ocath,
deposcs and says that:

1. Your declarant is an attorney duly licensed to

practice law within the State of Hawaii;

2. Your declarant was appointed by this Honorable
Court to represent * in <he above-entitled acticn;
3. That the foregoing is kased upon your declarant's

review Of the files in this matter.

Your declaran: states the fcregeing under penalty of

ISR

perjury.

NATHAN R. BRENNER
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CRUDELE DE LIMA & SHTRCMA
Attorneys at Law

NATHAN R. BRENNER 6984-¢
10 Shipman Streat

Hilc, Hawaii 96725
Teleprone: (808) 969-7707

<N THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAZI

FC-S Nos.—

98-034

In the Interest of

U,

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1551

TO+ CRAIG SADAMCTO, E8Q.
234 Waianuenue Ave. Suite 134
Hilo, Hi 98720
Attorney for Mother

NOTICE OF MOTION

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

XOTZ2= _OF MOTICN

STEVEN 2. STRAUSS, ESQ.

190 Keawe Streer Suite 33
Hile, Hi 96720

Attorney for Peter Kema, S-.
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EDITH KAWAI, ESQ.
£5-1229 Cpelo Road Suite Al
Kamuela, Hj 56743
Guardian ad Litem

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigried will bring the
foregeing Motion on for rearing before the Honerable Ben Gaddig,
Judge of the dbove-entitled Court, in hig courtroom, at the
Family Courr of the Third Cizeyir Court, wWailakea Cffice Plaza,
345 Kekuanaoa Streec, Hilo, Hawaii, »nn Tuesday, May 19, 1958, at

the hour of 1:.0¢ B.M., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be

heard.

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, ﬂfcy-y. s, 7oL

NATHAN R. BRENNER
Attorney for Father
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CRUDELE DE LIMA & SHIRCMA
Attorneys at -aw

NATHAN =, BRENNER 6584-¢
10 Shipman Streat

Hilo, Hawaij 96720
Telephone: (808) 3969-7707

Attorney for (NN

IN THE FAMILY CCURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWATI

FC-S Nos .

98-C34

In the Interesc of

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1951

CERTIZICATE 2F SERVICE

)
).
)
)
)

) CERTIFICATE OF SERVIC
)

)

)

)

)

)

J

)

(—"
The undersigned hereby certifieg that on, 2 (T/?"Z’ 1998 a
i

cepy of DEFENDANT/S/PLAINTI?F/S was duly served to tre following

-4
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AT ITOKNEY LENEZKAL RL1LU

as indicated belcw:

MATLED JIRT. . I  EACSIMIZE

(X))

TO:

CRAIG SADAMOTO, BSQ.

234 Walanuenue Ave. Suite 124
Hilo, Hi 967z0

Attorney for Mother

STEVEN D. STRAUSS, ESQ.

150 Keawe Street Suite 31
Hilo, Hi 56720

Attcrney for Petar Kera, sr,

EDITH KAWAI, ESO.
65-1229 Opelo Road Suite A1
Kamuela, Hi 986743
Guardian Ad Litem

SR

SugsTaSTUCSOr

¢
i

HAND QEVIYERSTH

NATHAN R. BRENNER
Attorney for Pather

- 93
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District Pamily Coust uf the Thisd Clreuit Fax #

Fax #

The Judiciary ¢ State of Hawaii

Ben b Gaddls
Judge

FACSIMILE COVER SHEET

FAX #:

PRONR

FROM: Familly Court FAX #:

PHONE s

RE: FC~S 98~0034 - Peter Kema, Jy.

NUMBER O PAGES TO FOLLOW: 9

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

N

(e

0
4/20/98 .
974-6575
934-5717
934~5700

This message is intended only for the use of the individual or
entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that
is privileged, confidential ang exempt from disclosure under
applicable law. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, or the employee or agent responsible fouu delivering the
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any dissemination, distributien or copying of this coummunicalion
is strictly prohibited. TIf you have received this communication
in error, please notify us inmediately by telephone and deslroy

the criginal message. Thank you.
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Stransgs; her!s Attorney - Craig S >to; Peter ,
Honolulu a~ertisexr; Marsha Kitagawa, “wirector of Public Alfairs
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IN TUE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT S‘A“;EEEHWNx
srhrs OF HAWAII TS Lj}ZFHiSJ
IN THE INTEREST OF FC-S 98-0034 CLERK

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF
INFORMATION REGARDING
PETER KEMA, JR.;
APPENDIX “a”

PETER KEMA, JR.,
born on May 1, 1931,

A child under the age of
eightean yecars.

QRDER FOR_RFLEASE QF INFORMATION REGARDING PETER KEMA, JR.

On Aoril 15, 1998, the Family Court of the Third Circuit
received a request for information from Mike Gordon, a reporter
with The Honolulu Advertisar. Mr. Gordon requested whatever
information that the Court was ablae to provide ahant Peter Kema
Jr., a six-year-old child who had been misaing for an extendad
period ot time. Mr.. Gordon was asked Lo provide his regquest for
information in written form. He did so, and a copy ©f his request
is attached as Appendix “A.”

After receiving the request for information, the Court
scheduled a hearing on this matter on April 16, 1998. Present
and participating at the hearing were represantatives of the
Department of Human Services, a deputy attornay general, the
Guardian Ad Litem for Peter Kema, Jr., and the attorneys for his
parents. A representative of the Hawaii County Police Departmant
charged with investigating the disappearance of Peter Jr. also

attended the hearing.
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At the hearing, certain partiea objccted to the rclcage of
information regasdling Lhils cliildg Ly Lhe Court, Thess objectiens
are overruled tor the reasons described below.

Based on the representations of the parties who attendeqg the
hearing, the cour: finds as follows:

1. The whereabouts of Peter Kema, Jr., remain unknown,

2. The past history of this child causea the Department of
Human Services, the Guardian Ad Litem and the Court to have grave
concerns about the whereabouts and safety of the child.

3. The release of limited information about the past
history of this child and the Circumstances surrounding his
disappearance will not suhstantially impede any current
investigationa by law enforcament authorities.

4. The release of limited information about the'past
nistory of this child and the clrcumslauces suryounding his
disappeararce may éncourage members ot the public to come forward
with helpful information about disappearance and present
whereabouts of the child.

5. The release of limited information about the past
history of this child and the clrcumstances surrounding his
disappearance is in the best interests of the child. Concerns as
to the present whereabouts and well-being of this child outweigh
concerns as to confidentiality raised on behalf of other family
members.

6. The release of limited information abou: the past

?
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histcry ¢f this child and the circumstancee surrounding his
disappearance serve legliimale purpose in trat such a releaosc
may materially assist authorities in locating this child.

7. The release of information concerning this child and
family should be limited because court proceedings continue and
the rights of other family members to confidentiality in these
proceedings should be preserved.

Based on the foregoing, IT IS BEREBY ORDERED that:

1. Pursuant to H.R.S. Section 587-81, limited information
about Peter Kema, Jr., will be released to the public;

2. The Cepartment of Human Services shall prepare a
synopsis of the allegations contained in the safe home guidelines
submitted in this action.

3. The synvpsis submitted shall include a description of
tae toliowing allegaﬁions:

A. The injuries suttered by the child when he [l-sL
came to the attention of the Department of Human Services.

B. The circumstances and allegations which caused the
child to again come to the attention of the Department of Human
Services,

C. All known accounts that have been provided to the
Departmert of Human Services and law enforcement authorities
about the circumstances of the child when he disappeared.
LCescriptions of such accounts shall incluce the location of the

child when last saen, the names of persons that the child was

3
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alleged to be with, and the datee that the child was last seaen.
D. A pluLuygrapn of the child.
E. Any other information or allegatlons Llial might
assist members of the public in locating the ¢nild.

4. The synopsis prepared by the Department of Human
Services sha’l be submitted to the Court for review and editing
by noon on Friday, ApriZ 17, 1998.

5. The Court will make any necesgsary revisions to the
synopsis and will fax a draft of the synopsis to all counsel.
All objections or suggested revisions to the synopsis are to be
faxed to the Court by no later than 4:00 p.m., Friday, April 17,
1908, Tha Court will release the synopsis as well as this court
order to Mr. Gordon thereafter.

€. All other Court rccorde in this action, as well as
copies of Court recurds released to counsel, family members
and/or law entorcement avthorities shall nut Le released to the
public or to the media without Court approval.

7. Copies of the synopsis, as well as this Order, shall be
made available to other media representatives or members of the
public upon request fhrough Marsha E. Kitagawa, Director of

Public Affairs, Office of the Administrative Director of the

Courts.



Dated:
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Hilo,
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Haw~vgi’ i,

HEK ZU° 98 15:52 No.Q0O8 P .0R

APR 1 7 1908

[onn. m

Judge

of the above-entitled court

L IRVAVE ]
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The Honolulu AdVertiser

P.O. Box 2110 Honolulu, HI, S8RN2 (BO8) 525-8090

April 16, 1898

Ben H. Gaddis

District Family Court Judge
Third Circuit, Hawaii County
Hilo, HI '

Dear Judge Gaddis:

My name ie Mike Gordon and | mm a reparter with Tha Hanoluly Advertiser. | am
respectfully requesting whatever information you may be able to provide about
Peter Kema Jr,, a 6-year-old Hilo boy missing since Seplember 1997 | understend
that Child Protective Services and Family Court were involved in this case, but | do
not know in what capacity, | am preparing a newspaper story on the Kema case
and the status of the investigation Inte his disappearanca. -

Any help you may be able to providy in the form of decuments or information
would be greatly appreciated. | feel that this story needs a wider audience than it
has had thus far; perhaps a reader will see the story and come forward with helptul
informstion. If you have any quastinns, plaase call me at (808) 525-8012.

Sincersly,
Mike Gordon
Reporter

APPENDIX "av
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MIS3SING CHILD: PETER KEMA, JR.

Peter Kema, Jr., is the seven-year-cld son of Peter Kema,
Sr., and Jaylin Kema: Peter Kema, Jr., is the subiect of a
missing~child investigation. He is alen +ha subjent of an open
¢child protective matter originating on the Big Island. Peter
Kewa, Jr., wds Lhe subject of a prior child protective matteyr
which was open from May 8, 1991, until OclLober 31, 1295, wlien the
matter was closed. The prior matter involved physical injuries
to this young man when he was four months old. The injuries
included a spiral fracture to the left legq. X-ray evidence
confirmed other old healed fractures.

In April 1997, a report was made to the Department of Human
Services, Child Protective Service, that Pster Kema, Jr., may
have a broken arm. Subsequent investigation could not confirm
this because the whereabou:is of Peter Jr. were unknown.

Peter Kema, .Tv., has not been seen by maternal relatives
sincc Docenbexr 1997. This child’s father reports that his son
was with him on Oahu in Auguat of 1997, although it may have been
as early as April or Mauy of 1997. Further, Faster Kema, Sr., hag
also reported that he gave custody of his son to a Rose
Makuakane, 2 wocman he referred to as “Aunty Rose.” Mr. Kema
states that he and his son were staying at A’ala Park while on
Oahu. Mr. Kema relates that he had known Rose Makuakane for a

period of two weeks before he gave custody of his son to her.

—

[

~

g
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¥rs. Kcema doca not know Rose Mekuakane. Mrs. Kema belivves Llhial
el Lusband had lefi Peter, Jr., with a relative but was not
aware that the child had been left with someone she did not know,
Mrs. Kemz was not aware that Mr. Kema had given “custody” of
their son tc Rose Makuakane until January 20, 1998. Mrs. Kema
did not give custody of her son to Rose Makuakane.

Thare have been a number of different stories given
regarding the whereabouts of this child who remains missing since
approximately April or May 1997. He is reported to ke with Rose
Makuakane, who may either be living on Oahu, or, who may have
relocated o a beach in Florida. It was stated that the child
had haan enrallaed irn a private echonl on Qahu. It was stated
that the child wae on vacation on Oahu. Rolatives had heard that
the child was staying with a maternal uncle on Oahu. It was
repoxrted that the child was living in Kona with a paternal aunt
and attending school there. However, there is no known record of
Peter Kema, Jr., being registered in any public school within the
state of Hawaili.

All reports regarding the disappearance and whereabouts of
Peter Kema, Jr., have been followed up without success. Police
have been unable to locate a Rose Makuakane. The parents do not
know how to contact Rose Makuakane, and they are not able to
locate their son. Child Protective representatives have asked
this young man’s parents to provide contact information for the

child and also to bhring the child te DHS nffires non sevaral
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occasions. The parents have not brought the child te mestings,
and the child has not been present on visits to the home. Feter

Kema, Jr., remains missing.

If you or someone you know has information regarding the
whereabouts of Peter Kama, Jr., or Rose Makuakane, please contact
Detective Glenn Nojiri of the Hawaii County Police Department at
961-2327 or CrimeStoppers at 96:-8300 (Hilo) or the Missing

Persons Unit of the Honclulu Po.ice Department at 528-3394 or

529-3115. Confidential raeports are accapted.

] vy
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m&ny S. BRONSTER 4750 CEthrl ot ame

orney General of Hawaii

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 31391 ey Lo o 36 My,
Deputy Attorney General . A
Suite 1014-A, Hilo Lagoon Centre

101 Aupuni Street CLinx

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Telephone: 933-8gg3

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

Fc-s vos . EGE

98-34

In the Interest of

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.s.,
AS AMENDED :

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S., AS AMENDED

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) HEARING: April 23, 1998
)

)

HONORABLE BEN H. GADDIS

The following parties and/or individuals were present:

(XX] JAYLIN M. KEMA ; Mother:

[XX] S (0] + Counsel for Mother:;

[ 1 , GNESgmD (FC-S No. ) ;

[XX] NATHAN BRENNER , Counsel for

(XX] PETER KEMA, SR. » Father (FC-S No. 98-34) ;

[XX] STEVEN STRAUSS ,» Counsel for Mr. Kema;
’
4
?

’

(XX] KAWA Guardian Ad Litem;
[XX] DHS Social Worker;
(XX] DHS Social Worker;

DHS Social Worker:

(XX] ‘
Deputy Attorney General;

(XX] ALEY K. AUNA. JR.

The following parties were not present at the hearing:

[XX] ~ who was represented by counsel.

| hareby eertify that this is a full, true and
corroct cepy of ihe erigingl on file in this office.

-

Cloik, Third Circuit Court, State of Hawaii




fully

Based upon the records and/or evidence presented and having
considered all relevant prior and current inform;tion

pertaining to the guidelines for determining whether
family is willing and able to pProvide with a safe
family home, the Court finds that:

A

——

Regarding Peter, there is reasonable cause to believe that
continued placement in temporary foster custody is Necessary
to protect the chilg from imminent harm;

Regarding there is reasonable
Ccause to believe at placement in temporary foster Custody is
L

necessary to protect from imminent harm;

Reqarding“ continuation in the
family home would be contrary to the immediate welfare and

best interests of

Regarding reasonable efforts
were made by DHS prior to the children out of
the family home to Prevent or eliminate the need from removal
of the children from the family home;

Regarding reasonable efforts
are being made or have been made by DHS to make it possible
for the children to return to the family: home.

Based upon the foregoing considerations and findings, and good

Cause appearing therefor;

1

p

s

»

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that:
Regarding + the prior award of
temporary family Supervision is revoked and DHS is awarded
temporary foster custody;

Reqarding~Peter, the prior award of temporary foster custody
is continued;

All prior consistent orders shall remain in full force and
effect until further order of the Court;

All parties shall appear at a return date hearing, which will
be held on May 14, 1998, at 10:00 a.m., before the Honorable
Ben H. Gaddis.

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, MAY 13 1998

2



@ 3 &RGERY 8. BRONSTER 4750

Attorney General of Hawaii

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391

Deputy Attorney General

Department of the Attorney « .
General, State of Hawaii ey

101 Aupun1 Street, Suite 1014-A

Hilo Lagoon Centre

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Telephone: 933-8883

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

rc-s vos. SR

98-34

In the Interest of

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

S,

EX PARTE ORDER FOR TEMPORARY FOSTER CUSTODY

An Oral Motion was made ex parte on April 22, 1998 by

EX PARTE ORDER FOR TEMPORARY
FOSTER CUSTODY

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Department of Human Services for an order of temporary foster
custody of — Based upon the oral representations
of — Social Worker for Department of Human Services,
and having considered the records and files in the above-entitled
matter, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that:

1. Department of Human Services is awarded temporary

foster custody of GG e

I h re hi d .

= e Cerhf)’ th 1at this- is a f(l“ rue ang Carrect
[ t

s.OP‘ ) fh”'s"ngmal on file in is offica,

— "

-

(

S—
Court, Stute of Hawg:t



2. A hearing shall be held on April 23, 1998, at 1:30
p.m., before The Honorable Ben H. Gaddis;

3. All other consistent orders shall continue;

4. The Hawaii County Police Department shall assist

Department of Human Services in securing the physical custody of

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii,

APR 2 3 1998

L H GARDIS [Seal)
JUDGE OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT




&b‘kGERY 8. BRONSTER 4750

* Attorney General of Hawaii A

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391

Deputy Attorney General J -

Department of the Attorney . LC"’
General, State of Hawaii o=

101 Aupuni Street, Suite 1014-A ~ TR

Hilo Lagoon Centre

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Telephone: 933-8883

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

In the Interest of

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

TE ORD FOR CUSTOD

FC-S NOS.
) 98-34

EX PARTE ORDER FOR TEMPORARY
FOSTER CUSTODY

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

An Oral Motion was made ex parte on April 22, 1998 by
Department of Human Services for an order of temporary foster

custody of _ Based upon the oral representations

of —, Social Worker for Department of Human Services,

and having considered the records and files in the above-entitled

matter, and good cause appearing therefor,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that:

1. Department of Human Services is awarded temporary

foster custody of _

wmourt, State of Hawajt



2. A hearing shall be held on April 23, 1998, at 1:30
p.m., before The Honorable Ben H. Gaddis;

3. All other consistent orders shall continue;

4. The Hawaii County Police Department shall assist

Department of Human Services in securing the physical custody of

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii,

APR 2 3 1998

BEN H. GADDIS (Seal)
JUDGE OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED COURT
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Q&& ERY S. BRONSTER 4750 iE
orney General of Hawaii e
A 8 3 uu P 'Y

r-n

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391 . NAHA
Deputy Attorney General - H. TAMANAH/
Suite 1014-A, Hilo Lagoon Centre CLER:

101 Aupuni Street
Hilo, Hawaii 96720
Telephone: 933-8883

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT
STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S NOS. oy

In the Interest of
98-34

)

___ )
)

)

_ )
)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S.,
AS AMENDED :

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S., AaS AMENDED

HEARING: April 6, 1998

HONORABLE GEORGE S. YUDA

The following parties and/or individuals were present:

Mother;
Counsel for Mother:;

Father (Fc-s No. ) ;
Counsel for
PETER KEMA, SR. Father (FC-S No. 98-3 ;

JAYLIN M. KEMA '
4
14
’
’
STEVEN STRAUSS » Counsel for Mr. Kema;
14
’
1
!
14

CRAIG SADAMOTO

l

5
g
X1

EDITH KAWAT Guardian Ad Litem;

DHS Social Worker;
Deputy Attorney General;
Paternaf Grand weTisy

|

]
]
]
]
]

~e

[
[
{
(
[
[
[
(
(
[
(

]

{1 , who was/were

either duly serveq or ordered to be present and having failed
to appear after three calls were made, is/are defaulted at

this hearing;

I hereby certify that this is a full, true and
correct, copy of the original on file in this office,

Clerk, Third Circuit Court, State of Hawaiji



[X] Srever] STRAY 5 S , , who was/wexe
represented-by-—ecounsel. cuseA.

Based upon the records and/or evidence presented and having
fully considered all relevant prior and current information
pertaining to the quidelines for determining whether
family is willing and able to provide with a safe
family home, the Court finds that: :

A Regarding Peter, there is reasonable cause to believe that
continued placement in temporary foster custody is necessary
to protect the child from imminent harm;

Regarding Peter, reasonable efforts were made by DHS prior to
the placement of the child out of the family home to prevent

been made by DHS to make it possible for the child to return
to the family home;

Pursuant to §587-63(a), H.R.S., as amended, there is‘ an
adequate basis (State’s exhibits in evidence) to sustain the

£ Regarding Peter, reasonable efforts are being made or have
petition in that arcoilllllNg vwhose physical or

above-named wiguiam® and the parties;

Regarding m
family is bresently willing and able to provide Sy

with a safe family home with the assistance of a service plan;

Z There is an adequate basis to invoke jurisdiction over the
Regarding'Peter, the child’s family is not presently willing
- and able to provide the child with a safe family home even

with the assistance of a service plan;

77£f Each party understands

that he/she/they have no right to take
from the lawful custody of DHS and/or
from the island of Hawaii without prior
urt;

or entice
remove
approval from the Co

Each party understand hat unless the family is willing and
able to provide with a safe family home within a
reasonable period of time, their respective parental and
custodial duties and rights shall be subject to termination;

The reasonable efforts findings are reserved Pending locating
Peter;



o,

IS

774
4

P

Regarding it is in the best
interests of that the prior award of temporary
family supervision be continued;

~e

Based upon the foregoing considerations andg findings, and good

cause appearing therefor;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that:

Regarding the prior award of
temporary family supervision is continued;

Regarding Peter, the prior award of temporary foster custody
is continued; :

The above-named— and parties come under the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Family cCourt pursuant to §§587-11(9) and
571-11, H.R.S., as amended; :

Regarding + DHS is awarded
family supervision of

Regarding Peter, DHS is awarded foster custody of the child;

All prior consistent orders shall remain in ful1 force and
effect until further order of the Court;

All parties shall appear at a o mued fwn Adls hearing,

which will be held on Aoril 2% 993 ’
at 220 £:M: , before the Honorable George S. Yuda;

part of the record, provided that the pParties reserve the
right to Cross-examination thereon:

State’s 1 DHS Safe Family Home Report dated March 13,
1998, prepared by, socia] Worker:



b . -
’ ’ . ' Ll

State's%
S T paots Sl sign cogmts for Dr. Cho Ba. 4l

—
L

~

~e

~e

~e

_7Z
/

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, APR -8 1998 .

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

@,

In the Interests of thdQll and Kema Cchildren;

FC-S Nos. @M@ and 98-34; :
ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S., AS AMENDED

4,



m‘gflw S. BRONSTER 4750 e "
&; tdrney General of Hawaii o

P RTINS 1A
ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391 hi A TAMANAHA -~
Deputy Attorney General e
Suite 1014-A, Hilo Lagoon Centre -
101 Aupuni Street
Hilo, Hawaii 96720
Telephone: 933-88833

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT.

STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S NOs. -

98-34

In the Interest of

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May l, 1991

e—TT

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S., AS AMENDED

ORDER RE: CHAPTER 587, H.R.S.,
AS AMENDED ,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) HEARING: March 23, 1998
)

)

HONORABLE GEORGE §. YUDA

The following parties and/or individuals were present:

JAYLIN M. KEMA , Mother:;

CRMY SAPAMI 7D » Counsel for Mother;

By —————— Counsel for o
Counsel for

Father (FC-S No. 98-34) ;

Counsel for Mr. Kema;

Guardian Ad Litem;

7

I

’

!

+ DHS Social Worker;
7

I

4

e

Deputy Attorney General;

~e wp

The following parties were not present at the hearing:

[ ] + Who was/were
either duly served or ordered to be present and having failed
to appear after three calls were made, is/are defaulted at
this hearing;




[ ] + Who was/were
represented by counsel;

[)( ] » who was/were not served.

Based upon the records and/or evidence Presented and having
fully considered all relevant prior and current information
pertaining to the guidelines for determining whether

family is willing and able to provide G vith o safe
family home, the Court finds that:

_B; A reasonable effort has been made to locate ang serve

» and it would
not be in the best interests orf to postpone the
Proceedings until service can be completed;

9 Regarding Peter, there is reasonable cause to beljeve that
placement in temporary foster custody is necessary to protect
the child from imminent harm;

C Regarding Peter, continuation in the family home would be
contrary to the immediate welfare and best interestsg of the

Regarding Peter, reasonable efforts were made by DHS prior to
the placement of the child out of the family home to prevent
Oor eliminate the need for removal of the child from the family
home; '

igf Regarding Peter, reasonable efforts are being made or have
been made by DHS to make it possible for the child to return
to the family home;

7;: Pursuant to §587-63(a), H.R.S., as amended, there is an
adequate basis (State’s exhibits in evidence) to sustain the

petition in that arcediNNNER vhose physical or

pPsychological health or welfare has been harmed or is subject

to threatened harm by the acts or omissions of

family;

There is an adequate basis to invoke jurisdiction over the
above-named& and the parties;

Regarding
family is Presently willing and able to provide
with a safe family home with the assistance of a service plan;

Regarding Peter, the child’s family is not Presently willing
and able to provide the child with a safe family home even
with the assistance of a service plan;

AN NEEN



D

——

74

Each party understands that he/she/they have no right to take
or entice from the lawful custody of DHS and/or
remove from the island of Hawaii without prior
approval from the Court;

Each party understands that unless the family is willing and
able to provide with a safe family home within a
reasonable period of time, their respective parental and
custodial duties and rights shall be subject to termination;

Regarding ' it is in the best
interests of WM, that DHS be oy d temporary family
of RN

supervision

%6M %ﬂi"» 4@0 &«liw}s o7 vrsved

~e

Based upon the foregoing considerations and findings, and good

cause appearing therefor;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that:

tegard N N, i i ovardeq
temporary family supervision of <D

Regarding Peter, DHS is awarded temporary foster custody of
the child;

The above-nameC_ and parties come under the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Family Court pursuant to §§587-11(9) and
571-11, H.R.S., as amended;

Regarding DHS is awarded
family supervision of

Regarding Peter, DHS is awarded foster custody of the child;

All prior consistent orders shall remain in full force and
effect until further order of the Court;

violation will be considered a felony and is extraditable
pursuant to Chapter 586, H.R.S., as amended;



=

All parties shall appear at a CNA\M fJ(J‘Wh MQ hearing,

which will be held on Aoril b 1998 ,
at 53;00 AM. , before the Honorable George S. Yuda;

The following exhibits are admitted into evidence and made a
part of the record, provided that the parties reserve the
right to cross-examination thereon:

State’s 1 DHS Safe Family Home Report dated March 13,
1998, prepared b_ Social Worker;

State’s ___

~e

-e

™~

-e

~e

~e

NN R

, g MAR 3 0 1998
DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, .
SR
CPORCE S YUDAR epyy
i 1

&

[ N
.

S

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

©..) JUDGE OF THE ABOVE-ENTITLED CQURT:.:
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STATE OF HAWAI

FAMILY COURT
THIRD CIRCUIT

CASE NUMBER

ORDER APPOINTING

GUARDIAN AD LITEM FC-S NoO.
98-0034

GUARDIAN AD LITEM (Name, Address, & Phone No.)
EDITH KAWAI

PETER KEMA, JR., an P. O. Box 160
(FC~-S 98-0034), Kamuela, HI 96743

885-0788
L

Children under the age of eighteen
years., | GUARDIAN AD LITEM FOR (Namei
| PETER KEMA, JR., & I

Good cause appearing, IT [S ORDERED that pursuant to HRS Sections 560:5-105,571-8.5(8). 571-24. 571 -46(8),571-47,578-17,
584-9. 587-34 and /or HFCR 17(¢) and 152, the person indicated above be appointed guardian ad litem to protect the interests of
the minor child named above until final disposition of the case or unless sooner discharged by the court subject to the “Duties of
a Guardiun Ad Litem (GAL)” set forth on the reverse of this Order Appointing Guardian Ad Litem and incorporated herein.

IT IS ALSO ORDERED that said guardian ad litem shall serve effective: March 19 . 1998

[X]} without bond

[ I without compensation but shall receive reasonable costs

[ ] asavolunteer of the Volunteer Guardian Ad Litem Program. said Program having the authority to act on behalf of the
volunteer.

[X1 and shall receive reasonable fees and costs

[X] fee and/or cost may be payable in whole or in part by an individual or agency, or by the court as the circumstances
may justity

[X] may be required to reimburse the court for fees and
costs paid as circumstances may justify and in an amount to be determined by the court.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the guardian ad litem shall:

(1) Be allowed access to the child by the caretakers of the child whether caretakers are individuals, authorized agencies,
or health care providers;

(1) Have upon presentation of this order to any agency. hospital. organization, school. individual or office. including but
not limited to the Clerk of this Court, human services and/or child caring agencies, public or private institutions and/
or facilities, medical and mental health professionals, law enforcement agencies and the Attorney General, the authority
to inspect and receive copies of any records, notes, and electronic recordings concerning the child that are relevant to
the proceedings filed under this chapter without the consent of the child or individuals and authorized agencies who

In the Interest of

(3) Hold any information received from any such source as confidential. and shall not disclose the same except to the
court and where allowed by the court, to other parties to this case and where provided by law:

(+) Be given notice of all hearings and proceedings including but not limited to administrative. family, civil, criminal,
grand juries or appellate: and all conferences including but not limited to multi-disciplinary team meetings. individual
educational program meetings or interagency cluster meetings. involving the child and shall protect the best interest
of the child therein, unless otherwise ordered by the court:

(5) Appear at all court hearings. proceedings and conferences to protect the best interest of the child unless otherwise
directed by the court: and

16) Have party status in any agreement or plan entered into on DA BT TR L d. - I

., ¥ [ERE

DATE Assigned jucee QC"" & ) F= i
i i | Sions ):'-'

R 19 8% Zze 7 Bl | g .
BLLO v N LAH 7°* o, S | § —
B o 4 . ) 1’ Iy L LN :)I ‘L
cc .I—:\I;;;linted GAL l he(;d(y certify that this is a full, MW ][ : ; i;

Family Court Director jpé% the original on file in this office,
DAG - A. Auna
* -/ﬂf‘iﬂM

Clerk, Third Circuit Court, State of Hawali

v/ DHS -~

ORDER APPOINTING GUARDIAN AD LITEM 3F-P-137



STATE OF HAWAII CASE NUMBER

FAMILY COURT ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL fC- N
THIRD CIRCUIT S NO98-034
FOR FATHER
CCUNSEL INAME & PHONE NG
In the Interest of:

‘ STEVEN D. STRAUSS
PETER KEMA, JR. 969-6684
Born on May l ’ 199]' . ZOUNSEL FCOR iName;

Good Cause Appearing, IT IS ORDERED that pursuant to HRS section 587-34(a)

that counsel indicated above is appointed to represent the
person(s) named above untl final disposition of the case, unless sooner discharged by the court.

March 25, 1998

[T IS ALSO ORDERED that said counsel shall serve effective:

O without bond.

O without compensation.

& and receive reasonable fees and expenses. The court will assess the costs of this action. The costs may be payablein
whole or in part by an individual or agency, or by the court as the circumstances may justify.

= R -
A2 oy K
= - -
cc: Appointed Counsel S
DAG - A. Auna ﬁka SO
DHS - gcu 7
GAL - E. Kawai ,,;E %
Counsel/Mother - C. Sadamoto 2
Fiscal <l
Family Court Director
’ v 3 ST | (
|
/ z% |
1780 S J
CATE JUEGE / |
i
‘ |
3F-P-135 ORDER APPOINTING

FORM NO (72937 4 34
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STATE OF HAWAII

FAMILY COURT
THIRD CIRCUIT

ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL
FOR MOTHER

CASE NUMBER

FC-S NO. 98—034

In the interest of:

PETER KEMA, JR.

CCUNSEL INAME & PHCNE NG !

CRAIG M. SADAMOTO
935-0033

05/01/91

~oy
il

JAYLIN M.A. KEMA

NSEL FOR MName,

Good Cause Appearing, [T IS ORDERED that pursuant to HRS section

587-34(a)

that counsel indicated above is appointed to represent the

[T IS ALSO ORDERED that said
O without bond.

O without compensation.

ccC:

A. Auna DAG
SRS - DiS
E. Kawai -
S. Strauss

Fiscal

GAL

person(s) named above until final disposition of the case, u

March 25, 1

nless sooner discharged by the court.

998

counsel shall serve effective:

X and receive reasonable fees and expenses. The court will assess the costs of this action. The costs may be payablein
whole or in part by an individual or agency. or by the court as the circumstances may Justify. '

Appointed Counsel/Mother

- Counsel/Father

Family Court Director

1]
o W&
P\ Fs
o =
IlN&¥
oly&3 §
g -
k] g?.
Q; =
3 & °
@ 5
o »
Fl %3
H 83
- [+ R
8
3

b1y

)
m

{ JUOGE

MAR 25 1328

MLRAeT e G

T YMYNVINVL H

3F-P-135
SOAM NGO 273937 1 34

ORDER APPOINTING
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Qgsg_ RY 8. BRONSTER 4750 TR L
orney General of Hawaii 1‘;7"‘*

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391 G e G Yy

Deputy Attorney General H. TAMANAHK

Department of the Attorney oo ——
General, State of Hawaii

101 Aupuni Street, Suite 1014-A

Hilo Lagoon Centre

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Telephone: 933-8883

Attorneys for the Department
of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S NOS .—

98-034

In the Interest of:

PETER KEMA, JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the attached Safe Family Home

NOTICE OF FILING; SAFE FAMILY
HOME REPORT; SERVICE PLANS #1

)

)

)

)

;

) DATE: March 23, 1998
) TIME: 1:00 p.m.
)

)

)

)

)

)

JUDGE: GEORGE S. YUDA

NOTICE OF FILING

Report and Service Plans #1 dated March 13, 1998, and prepared by

— Social Worker for The Department of Human Services,

is hereby being submitted to the Court pursuant to Section 587-

40, H.R.S., as amended.

DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, March 18,

ALEY K. A

Deputy Attorney ene

Attorney for The Dep rtment
of Human Servic



Child Protective Service is a specialized child welfare service
that is time limited. It is not intended to address all of the
family's problems, but rather to resolve the most critical
problem(s) which will reduce the risk of further harm to the child.

Confidential Report of the
Department of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S No.: - 98-034

SAFE FAMILY HOME REPORT;
SERVICE PLAN #1

IN THE INTEREST OF:

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
PETER KEMA JR. )
Born on May 1, 1991 )
)
)
)
)
)
)

Children under the ag
of eighteen vears. :

SAFE FAMILY HOME REPORT
(March 13, 1998)

THE DEPARTMENT BELIEVES THAT REASONABLE EFFORTS MUST BE MADE TO
PRESERVE THE FAMILY UNIT, TO PREVENT UNNECESSARY PLACEMENT OF A
CHILD, AND RETURN THE CHILD TO THE FAMILY BY PROVIDING APPROPRIATE,
AVAILABLE SERVICES TO THE FAMILY MEMBERS IN A TIMELY MANNER.

The following informatien concerns the current situation relevant
to each of the 14 guideline criteria set forth in HRS 587-25.
(Numbers is () indicate numbers as set forth in statute.)

This is the initial report intended to be reviewed in conjunction
with each of the prior reports submitted in this case.



I. CHILDREN: (1-3)

a. Current situation (1):

@R has very good
attendance at school; in t 1997, @ was absent.

only one time in the first quarter. SIS academic
grades show that @@ has a GPA of 2.6, according to

teacher. A @ high marks are in Writing (B-), Social
Studies (B), Science (B-). Wl has S+ in the area of
Speaking, Art, Health, Personal and Social Attitudes. -

does homework.

G a2cademic

absent two times during the fall of 1997.

work was marked "S", satisfactory in all subjects.
received an "S+" in "Speaking" capability, and in Music,
in Health in Personal and Social Attitudes and in Work

Habits. Also written is that R does
homework.

Peter Jr. is a six year old boy, whose whereabouts are
not known by DHS. He was last seen by

in December, 1996. He was never brought to
DHS by the parents, as were the other
DHS has not been able to locate Peter's registration in
school in any public school; neither parent has shown
that he is registered in any private school.

* is a four year old who has not
attended school; ¢y has remained at home with Mother.
stated attending the preschool in a . Hilo
Methodist Church.

SN - baby girl sibling, who was born

on August 20, 1996; according to the parents, the baby
girl, died on August 21, 1996. She
was given a social security number; but according to
Mother, there were no funeral provisions. Mother also
stated there were twin girls who were born at five months
gestation stillborn in early 1992; she denies there was
domestic fighting just previous to the loss of the
babies, but the loss of the twin girls did follow the
removal of—from her care the preceeding May,

1991. :




Harm (2

On or about May 8, 1991 a report was received by DHS
N -

* and Hawaii Police Department
(HPD) after Mother contacted HPD requesting the police

assistance in having (NS rcturned to her.

had with them and

told DHS that Mother had signed a written statement
designating Father's half sister, Dorothy Kepano, to have
temporary custody o because Mother
was going to visit her newborn, Peter Jr. born on May 1,
1991, at Kapiolani Hospital (Kapiolani Medical Center for
Women and Children, Honolulu, HI.).

According to N -t crnal Aunt, Dorothy
Kepano, took ' to wvisit

in Kona, West Hawaii after ﬂl

egedly asked to see F

reported to DHS that she observed "marks on
When she asked (I how @ got the mark
said, "Peter (Mother's boyfriend) did it."
aske about the mark on
responded "Peter". DHS social
in the hospital waiting room.
was watching the two

Mother's
children. DHS social worker observed a slight
cheek on

brownish/yellowish discoloration oniilllille .
* lower cheek, there was a dark pink
discoloration. DHS social worker attempted to talk with
“ who told GEEEEEEENERNNNEe 'Tcll the
lady who gave you that mark; tell her." @il would not
speak with DHS social worker about the marks nor anything
else. covered face with @ hands and turned,
facing the wall. West Hawaii determined that because

Mother's residence was in East Hawaii, the
were referred to contact the East Hawaii DHS

office to make a report.of Child Abuse and Neglect.

The report was confirmed for physical abuse of

by- Peter Kema, then Mother's boyfriend. The

were placed in protective custody and placed
The

case file was transferred from West Hawaii DHS office to

Fagt Hawaii DHS office for case management services.

worker sought

On or about August 12, 1991, report was received by DHS

from Hilo Medical Center alleging physical abuse to Peter
Jr., Mother's GuiilD. The medical reporter stated

that Peter Jr.'s
requested a report be made to DHS regarding the nature of

3



Peter Kema, Jr's injuries. The caller stated that Peter
Kema Jr. was brought to the emergency room on August 11,
1991 at about 1655 hours by Mother, Jaylin Acol. She
reported to the Emergency Room physicians that she
noticed the child's left knee was swollen and red. She
felt that he may be in need of medical treatment. Mother
stated that the previous night, August 10, 1991, Peter
Jr. was very fussy. She did not offer any explanation to
the physician how it was that Peter, Jr. received the

injuries.

According to the caller, the child has old multiple
fractures but the medical reporter does not know where
the injuries are located. The reports and x-rays have

not been received by the attending physician. The new
injuries include a fracture to the left knee. The left
knee is red and swollen. The medical reporter stated

that o onsulted with Dr. Richard Lane who is
confirming that the child, Peter Jr., has old fractures

as well as a new injury to the left knee. The reporter
stated that the location of the old fractures were not
recorded on the form immediately available at the time

the report was made.

The emergency physician noted on the report that the
injuries appeared "suspicious", i.e. as to origin. At
the point of DHS intake, the perpetrator are unknown;
however, the only caretakers known to DHS are Mother,
Jaylin Acol, and Father, Peter Kema, Sr.

This report of physical harm of four month old Peter Jr.,
where '"extensive skeletal damage, primarily to the
metaphyseal area caused by twisting of limbs, which was
completely unexplained by either parent. The parents had
been the only caretakers for the infant" according to the
DHS social worker. Although the DHS social worker did
not conclude the parents were the perpetrator of the harm
and yet did not have another person who may have been the

perpetrator.

and under the care of
until sometime in June, 1995. At
were returned to Mother and Mr.

that time,

Kema, Father of Peter and (il and Stepfather to D

On or about April 4, 1997, a report was received by DHS
alleging physical abuse to Peter Kema, Jr. age five years
and eleven months. The reporter, a therapist, stated
that a client and relative of the Mother, Father and Gl
WS, s:t:ted an opinion that Peter Jr.'s arm
is broken. At an earlier time, the client knew Mother
and had a relationship described as "close" with the
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relative-client. The relative stated an opinion that the
harm was caused by Father "who may have abused the child

and not Mother"; furthermore, the relative added that
Peter Jr. is dressed in long-sleeved shirts "all the
time." The relative who spoke with the reporting

therapist suspects that the family will be moving £from
the Nanawale house. The relative added that Peter Jr.
has been seen "to eat puppy shit and is made to sit on

the floor", suggesting that this is not the case with <mpy
, in addition to being degrading for the

child. No further information was provided at that time
from the reporting relative's family.

On June 18, 1997, the report was received by DHS
Petitioner and a home visit was made to the Nanawale home
on the corner of Niihau and Flower streets. The only
house was a dull-gold colored prefabricated house, which
was empty. There was no sign of inhabitants' belongings.
The address was 724 Niihau Street.

On or about June 19, 1997, it was learned that Mother and

Father and U "cved from Nanawale area to 133
Puhili Street, Hilo in the Kaumanu area. There was a

phone connected at the time.

On or about June 25, 1997, Petitioner made a home visit;

Father came out of the ranch-style home. He was soft-
spoken but pleasant; he invited Petitioner inside the
garage area door. He said they were just moving in.

Table and chairs had broken seats and the inside appeared
to be in need of cleaning. He said that Mother went to
a WIC (appointment) and would not be returning for
several hours; went with her. Petitioner
did not stay to interview him, but requested that he,
Mother and Peter Jr.
an , also come with the parents. An appointment
time was set for June 26, 1997 at 9:00 AM at the DHS
office; he agreed they would be there.

On or about July 7, 1997, the parents came to DHS office
with after cancelling two
previous appointments, on or about June 26 and June 27,
1997. Mother and Father would not interview separately.
Their primary reason was that CPS had taken their
children once before (Kona, 1991), and they contended
they were very anxious about even being in the CPS
office. The report of April, 1997 was in the interest of
the absent child, Peter Jr., who was said to have a
broken arm by an anonymous mandatory reporter who worked
with the niinor who knows the Kema children. The minor
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thought that Peter Jr.'s arm was broken by Father; upon
hearing this, the mandatory reporter contacted DHS.

Mother talked about Peter Jr. "Peter was sick and didn't
go to school; he stayed home from school. When he got
well, we got a letter from the school (asking) where he
was. He was not allowed to return to school, the same
day he fell from a tree. It happened between November
22, 1996 and November 28, 1996. Jr. was playing outside,
they were chasing each other." (Reference was made to
the previous residence in Nanawale area.) Peter had been
on the back porch. He jumped from a trunk of a tree,
about four feet high or less. (NN <tated
that Peter Jr. was standing on the tree about seven or
more feet high just before he jumped.) Mother continued
saying that Peter (Jr.) stood on it pretending to be
kicking. "He was standing on top of the (tree) stump.
—was outside. I saw him on the tree stump; then
saw him on the ground. Then, he came to me and said his
arm 'was sore'. But he moved his forearm; then he said
he had 'a sore hand'." Both parents tended to minimize
the injury of Peter Jr. and the child's telling of his
pain. The parents said they took him to the doctor at
Pahoa Health Center on the next day, after Peter Jr. had
complained of pain. However, Mother contended that the
doctor at Pahoa Family Health Center had stood in front
office area, looked at the child's arm and determined
that the arm was "not broken". She said that the doctor
had not taken the child into the examining room, nor was
the child's arm x-rayed. Mother said the doctor told
them, "Wrap up his arm", suggesting that his arm would be
"okay". Then Mother said that Peter (Jr.) was staying at
a paternal aunt and uncle's home "until mid-August"
(1997), calling his absence "a vacation"; however, she
would not give the name or any information about Peter
Jr.'s caretakers or his condition. Mother agreed to
bring Peter Jr. to the DHS office on August 15, 1997,
when she said he would have returned home. (At the time,
it was not recognized by DHS Petitioner that this was the
date of Admissions Day, a holiday; the clients also did
not mention this at the time.)

Mother blamed NP or making the reports to
D — e

DHS, and expressed her anger towards her

Father agreed with what Mother said. Specifically,
Mother said that her Sl told her that she could
not name her oA 2fter her brother. She added
that her mother would not let her breastfeed her baby,
nor take care Mother would not give
reasons why would have made these
wants

requests. Mother added that
k to go visit them, complaining about one
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outing when GEENENENEEEN vere taken bowling by the

Mother also was asked about her Uil Mother
told of losing babies during pregnancy and blamed the
miscarriages on her own medical condition of diabetes,
although this has not been confirmed by DHS. She said
that she "lost a baby boy, August, 1990, before Peter,

Jr." Mother mentioned "losing twins; they came out in
pieces," but the dates and specifics are not known,
here.) Mother told of death of her last baby, (il

born August 20, 1996 but who died on August 21,
1996; for this child, the parents did not have a funeral,
and the parents did not find that ommission unusual.
(According to JENEENNENENENES o1 October 1, 1997,
the deceased babies are buried in a cemetary in Kona.)

Mother was the primary spokesperson; Father presented
himself as though he was a victim and encouraged Mother
to answer questions, not disagreeing with her statements.
The relationship between the parents was presented as one
of agreement; however, there was disproportionate sadness
and remorse, which was apparent, especially with Mother.
Father was gquiet and did not demonstrate emotional caring
or take an initiative in expressing compassion towards
Mother. This absence in the presence of Mother's need
was apparent. Mother repeated with Father's quiet
agreement, that they mistrust CPS (Child Protective
Service/DHS) "because of what they did to us. They took
G (from us in 1991) and also placed with
] in 1995."
On or about June 30, 1997, Mother agreed to return to the
DHS with Peter, Jr., since the parents had not brought
him to the DHS interview. Mother agreed to August 15,
1997 at 1:00 P.M.; however, the appointment day was later
identified as Admissions Day and the DHS office was
closed. Mother did not contact DHS and while the
parents had an answering machine, the phone was then

disconnected.

On or about June 30, 1997, Petitioner telephoned the
Pahoa Family Health Center and requested information

about the history of ¢l cdical care, having

sent a consent form signed by Mother.

On or about July 17, 1997, a representative of Pahoa
Family Health Center telephoned DHS leaving a message
that Peter Jr. "is currenty on Oahu, paternal aunt (no
name) is taking care of him; HMSA Quest and primary care
physician is the Pahoa Family Health Center. The date of
Peter Jr.'"s last physical exam was December 15, 1995,
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eighteen months earlier (unlike Mother's report). The
preschool physical examination showed there were "no
injuries" .(observed). Although the previous medical
doctor providing medical care was Dr. Wesly Sugai, in
Kailua-Kona, Mother did not request for the medical
records to be sent to the Pahoa Family Medical Center, to
the current medical doctor of Peter Jr. In addition,
there was no information received by the Pahoa Family
Health Center from any other doctor who may have treated
Peter Jr. in the past, e.g. Kapiolani Medical Center.

On or about July 24, 1997, Petitioner spoke with the
mandatory reporter, whose client had voiced a concern for
Peter Jr.'s health. The reporter stated that the
relative used to go to Peter Jr.'s Mother for support.
The relative told the therapist that Peter Jr. had to
wear his underwear on his head at age three or four,
which was humiliating to the child; the relative also
said that the child had to sit on the ground and eat,
rather than in a chair, which was also humiliating to the
child. The other family members thought that Peter Jr.
continued to be abused. Peter Jr. was last seen in

December, 1995.

On or about August 21, 1997, Petitioner spoke with

inquiring about where she may think
. , Peter Jr., would be. She said that (il
told her that Peter Jr. 1is with her brother,

Maternal Uncle, Reed Acol, who lives in Honolulu. But

this was found to be untrue. told
Petitioner, "We don't know who Peter Jr. 1is staying
with."

On or about August 19, 1997, Petitioner made another
visit to the Kaumana home but found the windows shut
tightly. There were two cars parked in the garage, the
sound of clothes dryer running. Upon knocking at the
door and calling their names, there was no sound of
voices nor did anyone come to the door. On the same day,
Petitioner telephoned the family home, but there was no
answer, except the answering machine with Mother's voice.
A message was-left for Mother to pick up the telephone or
to return the call the next day.

On or about September 17, 1997, Maternal Uncle, Reed
Acol, stated that in the second week of September, 1997,
he coincidentally talked with Mother when she appeared
next door to his workplace. He stated that he thought

his sister and were on Oahu when <l

were taken Irom her. "Our lives were torn
apart. I told Jaylin (Mother) that I could not be apart
of their problems. I told . would
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not fight with them about Jaylin (Mother). When my wife
met me three years ago, she saw Peter boy, how he is.
All I know is that he had a broken leg. They were

fighting then (1994). My sister (Mother) told me that
Peter Boy was living with Peter's (Sr.) aunt in Honolulu,
learning Hawaiian stuff. I don't know the name of his

aunt. doesn't know the

name of the aunt.”

On or about October 1, 1997, iR <tated,

"Nobody in our family has seen Peter, Jr. in a while. We
saw December 14, 1996. We saw Peter
Jr. at Aunt Dorothy's (Father's half-sister) funeral.
Mother was close to her. Mother had moved to Ka'u and

then to Kaumana area."

On or about October 2, 1997, Petitioner made a visit to
the Kaumana Elementary School to interview th
an eight
year is in the third grade. WP said, "Peter
lives with Auntie Nani in Kona. We go mostly every week
to see Peter Jr. I don't know where they live or their
last name." @& said the last time they saw Peter Jr.
"was when I went to school" in September, 1997. She
added, Auntie does not work. She lives in Kona. Her
children are in school, one in high school and the other
two children are in elementary school. Their name 1is
Kobayashi." s s2id that Peter Jr. is staying there.
"He's in grade one. I don't know when he's coming back."
@@ caid that the last time they talked with Peter Jr. on
the telephone was in January, 1997. "Peter had a cast on
his arm, the left. I was in the second grade when it
happened. That's when he went to the doctor; I forget

the name of the doctor, at Pahoa Health Center." «llip

gave an explanation of the injury to Peter Jr. '"Peter
Jr. fell out of a tree in Pahoa, in our back yard in
Nanawale Estates. You drive down Flower street, turn

left, onto Niihau Street, the first house on the right.
The tree was in the back yard, left rear. I think Dad
cut it down. No, I didn't see Peter Jr. fall. At that
time, I was in my room in the house. Peter Jr. was
playing with«illlll® We had a small ladder. A single bed
was under the tree so we would not get hurt. When Peter

Jr. jumped from the tree, he did not land on the bed. &

4 c1d Mom and Mom told me to get Peter Boy in the
house. Mom carried Peter Jr. into the house. I gave Mom
what she needed. He hurt his leg. It was his left leg
on the knee. Peter Jr. did not want to walk. He was
crying 'Mom, Mom'. It was his left arm that was broken.
Then Peter Jr. was crying out loud. We put him in the
car and Mom took Peter Jr. to the doctor. The same
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(thing) as we did when il had warts; we went to Dr. Mc
Callister's office. The cast was on his left arm. I saw
it when he came home. Then Mom sent Peter Jr. to Dad's

ownn Auntie."

said the family visited Honolulu on January 1,
1997 for two weeks and saw Auntie Nani Kobayashi (also
known as Lee Ann Kobayashi and spouse, Jay Kobayashi).
Peter Jr. knew that he was going to Kona. Peter Jr.
doesn't live with us. He wanted to visit his aunti; he
wants to go to school there, in Kona. Our stepdad
(Father of Peter Jr.) treats us the same as Peter Jr.;
Mom treats us the same as Peter Jr. It's not that they
(Mother and Father) don't want him. I tell Peter Jr.
that I miss him, too. Dad says he worries about him.
When were asked "Why
don't the parents bring Peter Jr. back to Hilo to live

with the family?" 4N can not give a reason
except, "Peter wants to go to school in Kona."

on or about October 2, 1997, GNP -cc tcon

was interviewed by Petitioner;{} is attending grade five

at Kaumana Elementary School. @l said that last saw
Peter Jr. in June, 1997. "We lived in Nanawale Estates.
He broke his arm. We, , were trying to
make a tree house. He was at the edge of the platform
and he fell. I was in the house talking with Dad

(stepfather). NN s2id that Peterboy fell out of
the tree. I don't know if he broke something. Mom was in
the house. I ran and helped him. I asked 'Are you hurt?'
He could not move his left arm. Dad covered his arm with
a towel. He stayed home overnight; the next day, our
parents (Mother and Stepfather) took Peter Jr. to the
doctor. His leg was not broken. Then we moved from
there to Kaumana. I don't know why Peter Jr. does not
live with us. 1It's been over two weeks since we talked
on the telephone. Dad (says) that he calls Peter Jr.; I
don't know where he 1is, now. They tell us they want
Peter Jr. "to learn something", but (R says that he
does not know what that 1is.

On or about December 23, 1997, the*
i G, -r: 2 message at DHS that Mother
reported that Peter Kema Jr. moved out of the home on
June 17, 1997, and that he left the Big Island in
October, 1997 for Cahu and did not come back to the Big
Island. She had no other information about this child.

On or about December 23, 1997, Petitioner telephoned
to inguire about Peter Jr. and news

from other family members. ) stated
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"all the family is asking 'Where is he?'" Maternal Aunt,
age twenty-two was home and spoke with Petitioner. She
said that Peter Jr. is never with Mother and the other

own sister lives
in Hilo but she does not have news from her of the
child's whereabouts. Mother's sister exclaimed, "My

nephew is missing. I don't want to think about it. Let
SRS ool with it!”

On or about December 26, 1997,
contacted Petitioner. He told of his concern for his
Peter Jr. He said that he last saw the child
after his baby sister (i died (August 21, 1996) at
the funeral of Paternal Aunt, Dorothy Kema in early 1997.
At that time, said that Peter Jr. "had a
black eye and one arm was spained. Mother said that she
had taken Peter Jr. to the doctor; medical care was given
at Pahoa Health Center. Mother tolssiiiiiy; that
she was told by doctor that his arm wasn't broken, but
'to wrap it up'. At this time iR vas receptive
to taking the initiative and filing a missing person
report on Peter Jr.

On or about December 29, 1997, Petitioner contacted a
private school which was suggested by extended family to
possibly have Peter Jr. registered with them. The
school, Punana Leo School administration in Keaau stated
there was no record of Peter Jr. being registered in
their schools at Keaau or Keaukaha, although they
transfer their students to public schools, since this is
a preschool program. (DOE adminstration had been
contacted by Petitioner earlier, and stated that Peter
Kema Jr. was not registered in any public schools.)

On or about January 8, 1998, Petitioner made a home visit
in the morning, but there was no car in the garage area;
no one answered the door. The jealousie windows were
shut. An officer was asked to accompany Petitioner, but
there was no response to the knock.

On or about January 9, Petitioner again requested to

have an officer accompany to the Kema home. This time,
Mother came to the door, stepped into the garage area and
was willing  to talk with Petitioner. She was unable to
answer questions about where her son, Peter Jr. is. She
was unwilling to talk about her own fear of her husband,
or about their separation, in which he stayed in

Honolulu. She wept when pushed to give answers about
what appeared to be her own complacency about the welfare
‘ Peter Jr. She seemed to let

Father take the child, and then to forget about the

11



child's needs. She would not express anger towards
Father, but she did refer to her dislike of her own
mother, . While her apparent
willingness to let her son be lost to her own caring, was
not acceptable to Petitioner nor was it acceptable to the
officer, she was willing to file a missing person report
on behalf of her child only after she was questioned and
she wept. It was noticed that Mother has gained a great
deal of body weight, appearing to neglect her own
appearance, perhaps preoccupied with various emotional
conflicts. Upon being gquestioned about Peter Jr.'s
whereabouts and what had happened to him in the last
eighteen months, Mother finally agreed to make a missing
person report with the officer who was present on behalf

of her son.

On or about January 21, 1998, Mother was interviewed by
Detective Nogiri at the Hawaii Police Department;
Petitioner sat in on the interview. Mother stated that
it was the day prior, January 20, 1998, that she "found
out" from Peter Sr., her husband, that he had given Peter
Jr. "to a lady in Aala Park," (Honolulu, HI.). The date
is not known. Mother said that she knew that Peter Jr.
went with Father, Peter Sr., to Oahu but that she had not
known that Father "gave up all rights (of Peter Jr.) to
Auntie Rose." Mother wept as she spoke. Then she added,
"No, I don't know Auntie Rose." She also said that she
thought that Father 1left Peter Jr. "with a family
member, " and that Father had told her in August, 1997, he
would place Peter Jr. in a Kona (Big Island) School.

Mother blamed her dESGEENENNNER for "taking away" their
experiences as parents, referring to the time period

between Fall, 1991 and June, 1995, whe syl rc
placed in foster care andg NS She

described their role when she said, "We found out that ¢
turned us into CPS (Child Protective Service."

She spoke of resentment towards her “when shes
then had to "ask permission to visit' at the

home. She added, "I want to raise -
my way." -

Mother stated that Peter Jr. was only three months old
when one day Mother and Father took N o the
beach. "I went in a store in Keaukaha. Peter (Father)
came inside the store. R va2s jumping on him,
(Peter) Jr. We thought everything was ockay. He (Peter
Jr. seemed) was alright. Next morning, his (Peter Jr.'s)
leg was swollen. I took him to the hospital the next

day. Then, they tookP into custody. I
hadn't found out until later that his leg was fractured,
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something wrong. Later, in court, I found out he had a
fracture inhis arm and left leg. The night (before
taking Peter Jr. as a baby to the emergency room), we
played with the baby in the water. He was crying. I
thought the water was cold. He was laying down."

Mother again gave her explanation of the DHS report of
April, 1997. She said that in November, 1996, Peter Jr.
was playing in the back yard (of their former residence
in Nanawale). He used to jump off (a stump) and play
like "ranger", television character. The first time Jr.
jumped, he slipped his leg and fell on his left side.
He got on the stomp but kept going. He came to me and
said, "My arm is sore." He said it started to hurt. I
waited a little while. Next morning, I took him to the
doctor to Pahoa Health Center. Dr. McCallister said it
was sprained. He said, 'Keep a wrap on it.' He was
walking and running; he was back to normal. In June,
1997, I went to CPS office to talk to (Petitioner)."
The last time I saw him (Peter Jr.) was August, 1997; he
was 1in good health. (Mother wept.) Mother said that
Father came back (to the Big Island) for one day, August
15, 1997 because she had an appointment with Petitioner;
Mother stated that Father took the child on August 16,
1997, back to Oahu "and didn't bring the child back." I
have no idea what has been happening (to the child)
between August, 1997 and today (January 21, 1998).
Mother and Father had separated in December, 1997, "split
up". Father just said that they were going. He said
that he couldn't take care of Peter Jr. Mother did not
have a ready answer when asked whether Father's
explanations were "hard to believe" for her. Mother then
stated, "I feel that Peter (Jr.) is a lost child. I feel
like he's alone. No, I don't know who Rose is."

Immediately after the interview with Mother on January
21, 1998, Detective Nogiri and Petitioner met Peter Kema
Sr. in the HPD waiting room, he declined to be

interviewed on this date. His reason for not
participating in the interview, was that he had an
emergency doctor's appointment. Mother spoke for him,

saying that he had "chest pains and can not keep his
appointment" with Detective and Petitioner; Father sat

with his head downward.

on or about January 21, 1998, RN, - 11cd

to say that Mother's hone _was not in service.
Petitioner and spoke briefly about
the last time she had seen Peter Jr., soon after New
Year, 1997; the Peter Jr., and were at
the funeral of Dorothy Kema, a half sister of Father, in
December, ™~ 1996. Petitioner inquired whether the
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had filed a missing person report on the
child but they had not. commented that she

did not _think the other are safe with @l
recalled

Ann Kobayashi and her husband, around January 3, 1997,
one year previous and that he was crying becaus

WS loft him there. = reminded
Petitioner that Peter Jr.,

were with a licensed foster parent from September, 1991

for three months. W
QG i cd with until they

returned to Mother and Father sometime in June, 1995;
during the first two years, SEENRs:id that Mother
and Father did not ask to visit the children.
also said that she is concerned that @R
"are programed to say things", i.e., she
that one or both parents are telling B
what they must say to Petitioner.

Petitioner informed wE» that missing person
report was filed on January 9, 1998 by Mother. Petitioner
was at the home while she made the report to the

Assisting Officer.

believes

On or about February 19, 1998,
contacted DHS, stated they had made posters for Peter

Jr., the day after they saw the published picure of him
as a missing child. gstated that she
had tried to talk with , Mother of Peter Jr.

and but Mother was found to be

Father might snap and hurt the other
When we had talked with the other , they
looked at the parents, to see what they would say. When

Peter (Father) yells, <l D . "

On or about February 26, 1998, Petitioner visited the
family home. Mother came outside to the garage area and
was willing to talk; she said that Father was not home
but "job hunting." Upon asking whether she knows anything
more about her son, Peter Jr., she said they are "waiting
for a letter" from the woman whom Father said he gave the
child to. The name that Father had given was Rose
Kaumakua, a Hawaiian woman who was known for her skill in
Hawaiian crafts. She repeated that it was at Aala Park
in Honolulu "at a lei stand", that Father gave away her
son to a woman, allegedly named Rose Kaumakua. Mother
said that she does not know her way around Oahu, that she
has not lived there, except in 1989 when she lived with
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On or about March 9, 1998, Father and Mother appeared at
the DHS office, after Mother had canceled two previous
recent appointments set for Father to speak with
Petitioner. Mother tried to follow Father but was told
he would be interviewed, alone. Father said that he is
now working, fishing with "Jimmy" whose name he doesn't
know; his first payday will be March 13, 1998. Father
was asked to take off his wife hat and designer oval
sunglasses, which gave him an appearance contrary to his
personality. Father did not offer information but was
led through a period of time, initially starting in
November, 1996, when his half-sister, Dorthy, was
deceased; this had been one of the last times family

members saw Peter Jr.

Father said he was the youngest of eight children; his
mother died when he was age five. His mother had a man
who lived with them, Moses Makuakane. Moses lived with
them for five years before her death. Upon her death,
Moses had his "cousin", Rose Makuakane of Halawa, Oahu,
come to live with them for approximately two weeks. He
states that Moses had worked in a security job at a
Keahou golf course in Kona in the early 1980's. Moses
left the home to live with his own sister and is now

deceased.

Father said that he did not see Rose Makuakane again,
after she left the home to move to Oahu. He states until
September, 1997 and did not find it inconsistent that he
turned over a child to a woman whom he had known for two
weeks, fifteen years ago. Father complained when this
discrepancy was ©pointed out; he complained that
Petitioner didn't understand, he had lost his mother
(death) and this "cousin" of Moses being in the house for
two weeks, made her a close family person. He said that
after meeting her a week earlier, that he told himself
that he could not take care of Peter Jr. Father said
that he lived "on the grass" at A'ala Park in Honolulu,
where homeless people congregate. He said he stayed in
a tent meant for eighteen people, but that it was not a
place for Peterboy. "I ran out of food stamps; I ran out
of money." When asked what he got from Rose Makuakane in
return for giving his son, he did not speak, wrenched his
face and appeared to bite his tongue. He said that she
made Hawaiian hats, taking a full day to make one. He
said that she wanted to move to the mainland, to Florida
because it would be cheaper there. He said that he
thinks she is living on the beach in Florida, "where she
can make her hats, and everything costs less there."
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When asked about the cost of travel and living there, he
said, "This is the reason she is selling her hats, to get
her plane ticket to the mainland." Father appeared to
believe what he said. He appeared to think that his
answers were logical. He claims to have decided to give
his son away, saying he wrote a letter to Rose, made a
copy of it at the 7-11 store near Aala Park in Honolulu.
He said that he thought, "I can't feed him good. I can't
take care of him." Father reports that he then gave the
boy with the paper statement, to Rose Makuakane. He
states that he believes that he "gave up rights of
parenting" to Rose Makukane; he felt that he could make
this decision, without any reference to legal process.
Father's capabilites to reason, make decision of sound
judgement and make responsible parental decisions appears
to be minimal and he may have fabricated the whole story.
The police have not established that a person named Rose
Makuakane exists.

c. Placement (3):

- remain with Mot!er and Fat!er w!en! has

been in the‘family home.

II. FAMILY: (4-10, 13)

Mother: |

a. Background (4):

Mother is Jaylin M. Acol Kema, a twenty-eight year old
woman, who has born sl
O - live with

her, one child's whereabouts are unknown to DHS and one
child is deceased the day following birth (August 21,
1996) . Mother also stated that she gave birth to twin
girls who were stillborn, at five month gestation on or
about February 27, 1992.
was born when she was sixteen years old;

the father ¢l
) according to
Mother. They lived together in Makaha, Oahu in 1989 when
Mother was nineteen years old. At that time,

r Mother stated that in May,i1991, a
were first taken away from her and placed in a
foster home. The second time they were placed away from
Mother, she said, was in August, 1991; at that time the
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children were placed with JdilEnenenullNNEREER
. Mother said that (NN

"were not supposed to be given to the 4INEER

L
IS That is, Mother and ouse, Peter
Kema, Sr., Father ofﬁter Jr.
did not agree to taking
- where they reportedly remained until June,
1995.

Mother is the third of five siblings, "the oldest girl";
she has two twin brothers who are older than herself.
Her ethnicity is mixed; she is Filipino, Spanish, Chinese
and Japanese. During her growing up years, she was
closest to her younger brother, Reed Acol, "but not after
I started having children." The youngest of the five is

her sister, Neievea, age 23, who lives with (illllIDEEES
Now, Mother is not on talking terms with

her own family members. Mother states that Father
graduated from Waikea High School; she claims to have
graduated from Kona Waena High School. She and Father
were married January 11, 1992.

Mother states that the family lived in Nanawale Estates
for four years, i.e. from 1993 to June, 1997.

Current situation (5-10, 13):

1. Mental health (5): Mother denies that Father has
been physically abusive to her, except that she did
identify a date of 1990, on an ATV intake
assessment form. In July, 1997 interview, Mother
stated that she and Father had family counseling
from "Kit" Bartel, also known as Christopher
Bartel, Ph.D., although she said they stopped
family therapy because he 1left the state (of
Hawaii). They could not say what they had gained
from their family counseling.

2. Domestic. violence (6): On January 9, 1998, Mother
denied that Father had physically harmed her,
except-in the early part of their relationship. She
denied that he had threatened to harm her or

3. Substance abuse history (7): It is not known
whether Mother and/or Father have used street drugs
in the last few years. They have not been tested

for drug use.
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Perpetrator of harm (8) : qll of Peter

jumping out of the tree play area and not landing
on a single bed, placed under the tree to catch the
jump. In the July, 1997 interview, Mother said
that he jumped off a tree stump about for feet
high; Father quietly agreed with her. The parents
contended they took Peter Jr. to the doctor at
Pahoa Family Health Center on the day following the
hurt left arm; the staff at the center state that
Peter had not been seen by the doctor since 1995
for a school physical. Mother has a history, along
with  Father, of having been the probable
perpetrator of harm to Peterboy, when he was only
four months old. There were fractures identified
at that time; neither parent either admitted to the
harm nor told on the other parent.

Protective non-perpetrator (9): Mother appears to
protect Father in ways, e.g., telephoning to make
excuses for him not keeping DHS appointments, and
for not interviewing with Det. Nogiri on the same
day she was interviewed at HPD in February, 1998
although he was waiting in the waiting area.

Parenting ability (13) : Mother's parenting
abilities may be better for older child then for a
younger child. However, she seemed to not be

interested in the welfare of this child; this has
not been explained satisfactorily. A psychological
asgessment of Mother's parenting ability may
provide more specific information. Mother repeated
that she 1is "waiting for a 1letter" £from Rose
Makuakane", the woman whom Father says he gave
their son.

Support system (10): Mother has her own family,
which includes her biological parents, her younger
sister, and her older brother; however, neither
sibling will reach out to Mother because they seem
to ask questions about Mother's apparent lack of
mothering care for this one child. The immediate
maternal- family is unable to explain why Mother can
be willing to forget a child. The extended family
members have not forgotten Peter Jr. and worry that
seriocus harm has come to him. The familial support
would be for Mother, but for her apparent lack of
caring for this child, Peter Jr.
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Father:

a.

Background (4) :

Father is Peter J. K. Kema, Sr., a twenty-seven year old
male, appearing of stocky or overweight build for his
height. He is Hawaiian. He claims to have graduated
from Kona Waena High School. Father had been employed as
a security person at Hilo Lagoon Center in 1992. He has
not been employed for some time. He stated that he has
been in a relationship with Mother since 1989.

He is the youngest of eight children; Joseph was the
oldest, a severely mentally retarded brother, who became
epileptic after "falling off a balcony at school.
Detective Nogiri provided information that Joseph was
kept in a room away from the house, secluded. Joseph was
said to have died in his forties and Father would not
talk about his care, behavioral problems and contacts
within the family. Father would not talk about his
disabled brother, he only said that "everybody took care
of him," Joseph, who was about twenty-five years older
than he. His next half-siblings is Rachel with whom he
lived, and who currently works in a local school
cafeteria on the Big Island. His half-sister, Dorothy,
died in November, 1996, one of the last few times other
family members saw Peter Jr. He has a brother, Henry,
who is deceased due to a medical cause; he has a brother
Benji, in his forties, who lives on the island of Hawaii.
The brother immediately above him is Thomas, age twenty-
nine. He did not offer current information about his

siblings.

Father said that when his father, Thomas N. Kema, died,
he was age five, 1975; he stated that his own father was
"smashed by a bull" while working as a rancher; after
being parallysized, "he died at home." His own mother
died he was age twelve. His sister, Lee Ann Kobayashi,
was fourteen years old and thirteen year old brother,
Thomas, went -to live with friends or neighbors because
they didn't have food to eat. He went to live with his
cousin, Moses Makuakane. Father states that at the age of
twelve, he had trouble in school. "I flew a chair at a
boy after he flicked a staple in my eye. Then I
accidently hit the teacher with my arm", when he said he
thought he was swinging his arm backwards to hit the
other boy. After that he was expelled; his next school
was Mt. View Elementary.
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III.

b. Current situation ({(5-10, 13):

1. Mental health (5): According to Mother in an ATV
application in April, 1992, they had not had
domestic violence between themselves in two years.

2. Domestic violence (6): Father would not give
information about their relationship except they
"separated" sometime in mid-1997. Mother denies
that Father has hurt her recently, physically or
emotionally;

3. Substance abuse history (7): His drug history is
unknown.

4. Perpetrator of harm (8): Father had one conviction

of Burglary in 1992. Mother does not talk about
Father hurting herself or Jiillllllingygy However, a
family member had made a report in April, 1997,
alleging that Father was thought to be the one who
injured Peterboy. Father has a history, along with
mother, of being the only caretaker of Peterboy
when he was an infant, and had documented fractures
at the age of four months.

5. Protective non-perpetrator (9): Father does not
present as a protective non-perpetrator.

6. Parenting ability (13): Father does not respond as
though he is caring individual, although when the
were interviewed in October,

1997, they denied being hurt by Father.

7. Support system (10)
SERVICES (11,12)

Compliance to Service Plan (11)

The parents resent. that DHS has been involved in their lives
again and Mother blames this on SR She has made
only courtesy contacts with Alternative to Violence. Neither
Mother nor Father are known to have participated in counseling
or chemical dependency assessment. Neither are known to have
participated in counseling except that Mother claims to have
been in counseling with a psychologist who is not believed to
be in this area, unavailable to confirm serious counseling

pattern.
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Iv.

Risk/safety issues (12)

Mother and/or Father may be willing to seriously get into
services. However, this is not assured, since they did not
take their role of parenting serious. They have "lost" a
child and not only fail to express convincing regret, but
appear to be self-satisfied with keeping their one child from

Wand DHS, all of whom present negative
responses rrom both parents.

ASSESSMENT (14)

a. Dynamics

This family has been isolated from other family members,
a pattern which Mother has fostered. Father, has a
history of neglect and absence of belonging to a caring
unit, either a substitute unit or family of origin. The
references which are made by Father are associated with
dates of death, manner of death, meetings at the time of
another's death, loss of family due to death, etc.
Mother is unwilling to be receptive to hergillllllEES
assistance. During the several years ¢S

were caretakers of the
young Mother and Father who were dealing with their own
emotional problems, may not have been included in the
family life of Mother and Father do not
have network of friends and Mother is estranged from
members of her own family, but now has the company of
Father. He does not appear to have friendly relations

with his older siblings.

The parents' emotional depressiveness, lack of
willingness to accept assistance from others, their
negative attitude, does not appear to be bolstered by a
high intelligence capabilities. They may have fabricated
stores to make it appear that what they say happened to
Peter Jr., happened. In reality, the boy's whereabouts
and lack of anyone identified who has seen this child,
renders a lack of optimism that this child will appear

without serious injury.

These parents may have provided for ol ll il

need to have diagnositic

ma
assessments to assure that‘ is being provided with
what 1s age appropriate upbringing.
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v. RECOMMENDATION:

a. Foster Custody for Peter Kema Jr. born on May 1, 1991;
b.
C. Service plan #1 be ordered.

I have reviewed this document.

3 /16 /9%
Acting Supervisor Date
Representing the Department of Human Services
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Date:

Cchildren's Name

This service plan is between _JAYLIN M. A. KEMA ("Mother") H
A ('Presumed Father") and PETER KEMA, SR. ("Stepfather") an

STATE OF HAWAI'I
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Family & Adult Services Division

SERVICE PLAN #1

March 16, 1998 rc-s Number : [ | N .
B

the Department of Human Services.

THIS PLAN WILL REMAIN IN EFFECT UNTIL FURTHER ORDER OF THE COURT.

I.

FOCUS:
Mother will participate in a support group for adult victims
of family violence, e.qg. ATV woman's support group
participation;

Mother will participate in psychological evaluation and
recommendations for treatment, e.g. individual mental health
therapy to address issues such as former traumatic experiences
e.g. sex assault, to address and work through emotional
relationships of her nuclear family, towards development of a
healthy sense of self-confidence and other issues which are

defined in therapy;

Mother will participate in group parenting class to gain a
broader sense the parenting protective role towards the step-

siblings, Peter Jr. when he is found and NENEEEEGRE and
recognizing emotional and special

needs of each child;

Mother will work .with the DHS social worker to assure R
S rcccive the individual or family counseling to
address their emotional needs of loss and isolation;

Mother will provide a safe home with or without Father and
Stepfather living in the family home;

Father will participate in services if he chooses to be active

with« SRR vhich he has not.

Stepfather will participate in a psychological evaluation to
determine the extent of his depression and/or other emotional
factors; if anger management 1is recommmended, then the



II.

III.

Iv.

Alternatives to Violence Program may provide the anger
management group component;

Mother and Stepfather may be referred to YWCA Family Support
Team, since the child's age for acceptance into the Family
Support Services program is seventeen. Dr. Horace Black may be
available to provide therapy for Stepfather.

Both Mother and Stepfather may participate in a parenting
class for young children which may be provided at YWCA or

Family Support Services.

GOAL:
X To make the family home safe and with a nurturing
environment for and
and Peter Kema
., when he is found, being a missing child.
OBJECTIVE:

Learn, practice and demonstrate communication skills with
other adults and children in @SSR home without
becoming violent and dangerous to the adults or children or

that foster depression in the parent or child;

Learn, practice and demonstrate nurturing parenting skills
enabling the parent to provide a safe family home for each

child.

Learn, practice and demonstrate healthier self-concepts
through 1life style of interest in others and healthier
understanding of the parents' earlier role as victim's within
their own families of origin;

THINGS TO BE DONE;

Mother:

1. Attend the Women's Support Group for victims of domestic
violence at the Alternatives to Viclence Program;

2. Attend and successfully complete parenting class for
intermediate school age children at Family Support Services;

3. Attend and participate in personal psychological evaluation

at Ohana Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy
of the report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;

Stepfather:



VI.

1. Attend the anger management classes at Alternatives to
Violence at ATV;

2. Participate in a psychological evaluation at the Ohana
Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy of the
report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;

3. Attend and participate in personal psychotherapy until
clinically discharged, e.g. with Dr. Horace Black;

C. DHS Social Worker:

1. Provide direction towards learning information
necessary to participate in classes and services;

2. Motivate Mother and Stepfather to enroll in
appropriate classes and counseling services.

3. Visit the family at the family home and provide basic
crisis and motivating counseling services at the time of

the visit.

OUTCOMES:

By the next court hearing, based on the progress and
evaluation of services in this plan, DHS will reassess the
goal and may recommend additional services.

YOUR PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS CONCERNING _ _
WHO ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS

SERVICE PLAN MAY BE TERMINATED BY AN AWARD OF PERMANENT

cus QU ARE WILLING AND ABLE To PROVIDE 4NN
WITH A SAFE FAMILY HOME WITHIN THE
REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME SPECIFIED IN THIS SERVICE PLAN.

SIGNATURES:

This plan has been reviewed with me.

LSW Date

Jaylin M. Acol Kema Date
S Social Worker

Mother

Date Peter Kema, Sr.
Presumed Father Stepfather



I certify I have reviewed this document.

Acting Supervisor Date

East Hawaii Intake and Assessment Unit

Representing the Department of Human
Services



STATE OF HAWAI'I
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Family & Adult Services Division

SERVICE PLAN #1

Date: March 16, 1998 FC-S Number: 98-034
Children's Name:PETER KEMA, JR. poB: _fay 1, 1991
This service plan is between _JAYLIN M., A. KEMA ("Mother") PETER

KEMA, SR. ("Father") and the Department of Human Services.
THIS PLAN WILL REMAIN IN EFFECT UNTIL FURTHER ORDER OF THE COURT.
I. FOCUS:

Mother will participate in a support group for adult victims
of family violence, e.g. ATV woman's support group
participation;

Mother will participate in psychological evaluation and
recommendations for treatment, e.g. individual mental health
therapy to address issues such as former traumatic experiences
e.g. sex assault, to address and work through emotional
relationships of her nuclear family, towards development of a
healthy sense of self-confidence and other issues which are
defined in therapy; :

Mother will participate in group parenting class to gain a
broader sense the parentin i ds Peter Jr.
when he 1is found, and

recognizing emotional and special needs
of each child;

Mother will work with the DHS social worker to assure the
children receive the individual or family counseling to
address their emotional needs of loss and isolation;

Mother will provide a safe home with or without Father living
in the family home;

Father will participate in a psychological evaluation to
determine the extent of his depression and/or other emotional
factors; if anger management is recommmended, then the
Alternatives to Violence Program may provide the anger
management group component;

Mother and Father may be referred to YWCA Family Support Team,
since the child's age for acceptance into the Family Support
Services program is seventeen. Dr. Horace Black may be



II.

III.

available to provide therapy for Father.

Both parents may participate in a parenting class for young
children which may be provided at YWCA or Family Support
Services.

GOAL:

X To make the family home safe and with a nurturing
environment for Peter Kema Jr.,=

OBJECTIVE:

Learn, practice and demonstrate communication skills with
other adults and children in oSSR hone without
becoming violent and dangerous to the adults or children or
that foster depression in the parent or child;

Learn, practice and demonstrate nurturing parenting skills
enabling the parent to provide a safe family home for each
child.

Learn, practice and demonstrate healthier self-concepts
through 1life style of appropriate self-care, interest in
others and healthier understanding of the parents' earlier
role as victim's within their own families of origin;

IV. THINGS TO BE DONE;

Mother:

1. Attend the Women's Support Group for victims of domestic
violence at the Alternatives to Violence Program;

2. Attend and successfully complete parenting class for
intermediate school age children at Family Support Services;

3. Attend and participate in personal psychological evaluation
at Ohana Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy
of the report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;

Father:

1. Attend the anger management classes at Alternatives to
Violence at ATV;

2. Participate in a psychological evaluation at the Ohana
Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy of the
report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;



VI.

3. Attend and participate in personal psychotherapy until
clinically discharged, e.g. with Dr. Horace Black;

C. DHS Social Worker:

1. Provide direction towards 1learning information
necessary to participate in classes and services;

2. Motivate Mother and Father to enroll in appropriate
classes and counseling services.

3. Visit the family at the family home and provide basic
crisis and motivating counseling services at the time of
the visit.

OUTCOMES:

By the next court hearing, based on the progress and
evaluation of services in this plan, DHS will reassess the
goal and may recommend additional services.

YOUR PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS CONCERNING ___
PETER KEMA JR. AND DEVALYNN KEMA WHO ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS
SERVICE PLAN MAY BE TERMINATED BY AN AWARD OF PERMANENT
CUSTODY UNLESS YOU ARE WILLING AND ABLE TO PROVIDE PETER KEMA
JR. VRGN WITH A SAFE FAMILY HOME WITHIN THE
REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME SPECIFIED IN THIS SERVICE PLAN.

SIGNATURES:

This plan has been reviewed with me.

LSW Date
DHS Social Worker

Jaylin M. Acol Kema Date
Mother

Peter Kema, Sr. Date
Father

I certify I have reviewed this document.

‘ Acting Supervisor Date

East Hawaii Intake and Assessment Unit
Representing the Department of Human
Services
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FAMILY COURT ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL e NG
THIRD CIRCUIT s L
IN THE INTEREST OF 4jjl# CHILDREN COMNSEL (NAME & PHONE NG |

NATHAN BRENNER

) | 808 969-7707

Children under the age of
elghteen years.

T

Good Cause Appearing, [T IS ORDERED that pursuant to HRS section 587- 34 (a)

that counsel indicated above is appointed to represent the
person(s) named above unui final disposition of the case, unless sooner discharged by the court.

[T IS ALSO ORDERED that said counsel shall serve effective: April 13, 1998

O without bond.

O without compensation.

X and receive reasonable fees and expenses. The court will assess the costs of this action. The costs may be payable in
whole or in part by an individual or agency. or by the court as the circumstances may justify.
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Child Protective Service is a specialized child welfare service
that is time limited. It is not intended to address all of the
family's problems, but rather to resolve the most critical
problem(s) which will reduce the risk of further harm to the child.

Confidential Report of the
Department of Human Services

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT

STATE OF HAWAII

FC-S No. :-

IN THE INTEREST OF:

PETER KEMA JR.
Born on May 1, 1991

SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE FAMILY HOME REPORT
(April 28, 1998)

FC-S No.:98-34

THE DEPARTMENT BELIEVES THAT REASONABLE EFFORTS MUST BE MADE TO
PRESERVE THE FAMILY UNIT, TO PREVENT UNNECESSARY PLACEMENT OF A
CHILD, AND RETURN THE CHILD TO THE FAMILY BY PROVIDING APPROPRIATE,
AVAILABLE SERVICES TO THE FAMILY MEMBERS IN A TIMELY MANNER.

The following information concerns the current situation relevant
to each of the 14 guideline criteria set forth in HRS 587-25,
(Numbers is () indicate numbers as set forth in statute.)

This is the initial report intended to be reviewed in conjunction
with each of the prior reports submitted in this case.

I. CHILDREN: (1-3)

a. Current situation (1):

is an GINENggp/car old @ vho is in the Gy grade
at Kaumana Elementary School. @B continues to attend the
same school since being placed in a licensed foster home.



is an (g year old @l who is in the s
grade at Kaumana Elementary School. il continues
to attend Kaumana School since being placed in a licensed
foster home.

Peter Jr. is a six year old boy, whose whereabouts are
t known by DHS. He was last s&en by

in December, 1996. He was never brought to
DHS by the parents, as were the other JdINNENGGENEN. Tt
was learned that Peter attended a preschool in the
Nanawali residential area for a matter of days.
According to , the parents kept him
home alot because he was "sick". Reportedly, the
preschool released the child due to his absences.

VS, i s - ~year old , who has been
attending Kamehameha in Hilo town.

Harm (2

On or about April 21, 1998, a meeting was held between
Hawaii Police Department Detective, Lieutenant and Major;
Department of Human Services social workers, unit
supervisor, and psychologist who had provided therapy for
Jaylin and Peter until 1995. HPD was firm in their
position there was no cause to place the
into foster care. The psychologist expressed
concern that if Peter Jr. is found that criminal charges
were made that Peter Sr. would tend to express anger and
be dangerous in relation to Jaylin and/or the g
] i the CPS supervisor tended to agree with the
psychologist.

On or about April 21, 1998 a Child Protective Service
Team meeting was held and included the social worker,
unit supervisor, Branch Administrator; the social worker
assigned in the period of 1991 to 1995 was absent. HPD
detective was unable to be present due to a Grand Jury
meeting held at the same time; another HPD personnel was

invited. DAG was unable to be present due to a court
appearance at the same time. Of the treatment providers
were Drs. Wesley Sugai, Robert McAlister and

psychologist, Christipher "Kit" Barthel, only the
psychologist was able to be present. Dr. Brian Wilson,
was present as was psychologist, Dr. Walter Jaeckle.

After some discussion among the members, recommendations
were made by the CPS Team and include the following.

That a foster home placement be made in the Hilo area to
provide a safe place for NS 2nd "easy
visitation with the parents" with effort to maintain
constancy in the school lives of wuiiNES. Note is



made that — should not be returned to the
parents if Peter Jr. is not found (alive). An
alternative recommendation was given where

would be kept in the parents' home, but that services
would be in place to monitor the family's daily living,

school year ends and to keep GENRENREENN, <afe fron
explosive acting out on the father's part. Special
services were suggested as homebased services,
therapeutic aid, counseling for the parents, utilization
of school counselor services while school is in session,

On or about April 22, 1998, a teleconference was held
between the Honolulu Program Development Supervisor, the
Hawaii Branch Administrator, the Fast Hawaii Assessment
and Intake Unit and assigned social worker. The decision
was that the social worker would place N i nto
a foster home, immediately. On or about April 22, 1998,
at approximately 1052 hours, DHS social worker and SSA
were accompanied by an HPD Sargent and Officer, arrived
at the Kaumana Elementary School and met briefly with the
Principal, Ms. Julie Ignacio. wSSESES—— 1o brought
to the office and transported by DHS to the DHS office.
After having a lunch, they were transported by the foster
parent to the foster hone. The foster parents are
transporting GGG - ch day, to Kaumana Elementary
School. ,

A second recommendation of the CPS team was regarding the
role of the Hawaii Police Department. The Detective
continues to be in contact with DHS social worker almost
on a daily basis.

A third recommendation was that visitation be facilitated
between the and the parents. on Friday,
April 24, 1998 the first visit was had for both parents,
although Father was late due to returning from a Honolulu
trip with HPD. The second visit was scheduled for April
27, 1998 and also on April 28, 1998. 0On April 27, 1998,
the foster parent had been informed to br ing s,
on the following day. Therefore, Jaylin and Peter Kema
talked for approximately forty-five minutes with the
Child and Family Service social worker who will be
working with them in their home and elsewhere, with themn,

focusing on parenting and family adjustment issues.

Recommendations regarding (G s include:

1. to provide pPsychological treatment for

regarding the disappearance of their brother, Peter, Jr.
In this regard, the medical doctor, Dr. Natalie Delue, of
Bay Clinic recommended that be
provided with psychiatric counseling. Plan: Although
three psychiatarists, Drs. Dennis Lee, Henry Yang and
Lane D. Matsumura, were asked to provide psychiatric



evaluation for members of this family, on April 2s, 1998,
they declined.

2. To review the medical and hospital records of Dr.
Sugai in Kona, so as to determine L LZWCENGE
details of Peter Jr.'s injuries and other unexplained
injuries. It is noted that Pahoa Family Health Care has
provided medical care for GNP :1though the last
notation for Peter Jr. was in June, 1995. Dr. Sugai may
be willing to send the medical records via currier with
the Court Order for Family Supervision and Mother's

3. To continue to work with HPD Detectives regarding
investigations into various aspects of this case. They
will continue to be requested by DHS to participate in
team and civil criminal conferences as scheduled at CAC.

4. To speck with Dr. McCallister regarding the visit to
the Pahoa Clinic to examine Peter Jr.'s arm, in order to
determine the extent and evaluation of the injury. on
April 27, 1998, DHS social worker was told by Pahoa
Family Health Center staff, that Dr. McCallister will not
be talking with DHS because the staff was told "not to
talk with anybody" (regarding Kema or @ children).
DHS was told to talk with Executive Director of Bay
Clinic, Ms. Stephanie Launiu, (969-1427).

5. To contact all the orthopedic doctors in Hilo to learn
if Peter Jr. had a cast put on his arm between November,
1996 and April, 1997, so as to learn the extent of the
child's injury. Of five orthopedic physicians or
orthopedic groups, three stated that Peter Kema, Jr. had
not been treated; however, one orthopedic physician was
not available on the telephone but another, Dr. John
Bellotti's office, stated that Peter Kema, Jr. was
treated by Dr. Bellotti of Kealakekua, HI., but would not
give any information until a consent form is received.

6. To obtain copies of miscarriage and death records of
the children still born and/or miscarried by Jaylin, to
determine the causes and whether domestic violence was
involved. Hilo Medical Center and Kapiolani medical
center are being requested with consents from Mother, for
medical records of the above.

Recommendations for services directed towards the
caretakers, Jaylin Acol Kema and Peter Kema, Sr. include
the following: 1. To have a psychological evaluation to
determine each parent's level of functioning and ability
to provide a safe home. 1In addition, DHS seeks to know
the substance of Peter Kema Sr.'s statements, his
motivations and alternative factors which may have led to
his behavior, i.e. that he "gave away" Peter Boy to a
woman named Rose. In addition, heretofore unknown



information may surface which may be useful in locating
Peter Jr. DHS has requested 1local psychiatrists to
provide an evaluation of each of the parents. However,
none have agreed; therefore, East Hawaii CPS Team nurse
agreed to request the same from Kapiolani CPS Tean
psychiatrist.

2. To provide psychological counseling for each parent
in relation to what is known and what is unknown about
Peter Jr.'s whereabouts and wellbeing.

3. To review medical records of the parents. Treatment
given at the Hilo Medical Center and Kapiolani Hospital
for Women and Children will be requested for incidents of
acute injury, birth or miscarriages and any other
significant medical information.

4. To check with local airlines regarding the tickets
and trips of Peter or Jaylin Kema during 1997. Hawaii
Police Department has made checks into the interisland
trips of the caretakers. Nothing new is known to DHS.

5. Finally, a re-teaming is suggested in May, 1997.

On April 23, 1998, a medical doctor who provided medical
examination of relayed individual
concerns for each child. Her primary concerns were that
had a i.e.
' She found that
but
not what she would consider strictly "normal" for a G
year old. Dr. Delue was concerned that have
asthma machine, which was brought for the child to
the office by Mother on April 23, 1994. While effort was
made to coordinate a sex abuse examination on the evening
of April 23, 1998, the examination was completed by the
SANE, sex abuse nurse examiner, at Hilo Medical Center,
according to protocol. Post examination, the nurse made
it clear to DHS and to the Detective Randy Medeiros, that
while the and
other anatomy was in the natural state for a
The * was attributed to poor hygiene on the
part of the —year old child. The allegations of sex
abuse were unconfirmed.

suggesting sexual abuse.

Placement (3):

The

were placed out of the home of Jaylin Acol
Kema and Peter Kema on April 22, 1998. They were placed
in a licensed foster home which is approximately eighteen
miles from the parents' home.



IT. FAMILY: (4-10, 13)

Mother:

Jaylin Acol Kema and Peter Kema, Sr. continue to reside

together, since he returned to the Big Island from Oahu, even

though they both stated that they had '"separated" in relation

to their marriage. They have lived alone since g
Sl vcre placed out of their home on April 22, 1998.

v. RECOMMENDATION:

a. Foster Custody of e Y -~
W < avarded to DHS;

b. Foster Custody of Peter Kema, Jr. be continued;

Respectfully submitted by,

, MSW, LSW
DHS Social Worker

I have reviewed this document.

EHIAU Supervisor Date
Representin e Department of Human Services
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Nanawale Estates
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DOB: 3/17/70

SSN: 576 84 5793




CCMES NOW the Petitioner, a duly appointed social worker of
the Department of Human Services ("DHS"), and hereby declares,
under penalty of perjury, that the statements made herein are
true and correct to the best of Petitioner’s knowledge,
information and belief.

: The above-named children come within the provisicns of

Sections 571-11(9), 587-11, and 587-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes
("HRS") . '

2. The children were found within the State of Hawaii at
the time the following facts and circumstances (which have caused
the children’s physical or psychological health or welfare to be
harmed or subject to threatened harm by the acts or omissiocns of
the children’s family) occurred, were discovered, or were
reported to the DHS:

a. THREATENED HARM
There is a reasonable foreseeable substantial risk that

harm may occur to the children based upon an assessment of the
criteria set forth in HRS 587-25, including but not limited to

the following facts:
CHILDREN:gﬁVULNERABILITY

1. N i o with JAYLIN M. KEMA (27)
("Mother"), PETER KEMA, SR. (27) <"Father")—

2. Whereabouts of PETER KEMA, JR. (almost 7) are unknown,

and his absence is of great concern, as shown in the following

chronology:

a. —stated they have not seen the =

child since January 1997, when he had a black eye and a sprained

b. At DHS request, Mother brought —to

the DHS office in June 1997 and stated that PETER JR, was

"vacationing" with an un-named paternal aunt and uncle until mid-

arm.

August 1997. Mother promised to bring PETER JR. to DHS offices

on August 15, 1%997.
c August 15, 1997 was Kuhio Day and DHS offices were

2



closed. When Petitioner later called, parents’ phone was

disconnected.

d. on August 21, 1997, (NN st:tcd that

Mcther told her she had contacted a maternal uncle of the child,

who lives on Oahu, and he denied knowledge of the child's

whereabouts.

e. On December 23, 1997, the family'’s —

worker stated that Mother told her offices that PETER JR. moved
out of the home in June 1997 and to Oahu in October 1597.

f. Petitioner has confirmed that the child is not enroclled
in any public schcool in the state.

g. On January 21, 1998, Mother participated in an interview
by police Detective Nojiri. She stated she learned from Father
only the day before that Father "gave" PETER JR. to a "lady in
Aala Park," on Oahu, where he stated he had stayed for a month.
Mother stated that Father identified her as ROSE KAUMAKUA.

h. Father accompanied Mother to the police station on
January 21, 1998, but, according to Mother, declined to be

interviewed because he had chest pains.

i. N s::tcd on February 19, 1998, that

she recently tried to talk to Mother about PETER JR. but that
Mother was "very defensive, rude and unwilling to talk."
7 after birth,

in August 1996.
4. From August 1991 until June 1995, PETER, JR. and his

were in DHS foster custody, mostly w1th—
=due to unexplalned fractures to PETER, JR. Both =
carznts have sxpressed resent at DHS involvement.
_ stated that when they had t— for
the first two years their parents rarely visited them.
PARENTAL PROBLEMS

5. DHS is continuing to locate records of its 1991-1995

involvement with the family, to ascertain the extent of parental

participation in services.

6. — stated on January 21, 1998 that _

3



are "programmed to say things." On February 19, 1998,

kstated that she is "scared that Mother and

Father might snap and hurt the other—' When we
had talked with the other - they look at the

parents, to see what they will say. When Peter [Father] yells,
they jump."
7. Father was convicted of Burglary 2°:in 1992.

SUPPORT SYSTEM/SERVICES
8. Although re willing and able to

not on speaking terms.
9. DHS-recommended services include psychological
evaluations of both parents and follow-up as recommended.

b. The children’s half siblings are the subject children in

a Chapter 587 proceeding, In the Interest of—

WHEREFORE, it is prayed that an inquiry be made into the
foregoing allegations and that action be taken pursuant to the

provisions of Chapter 587, HRS, including but not limited to:

SO - o-c--od, foster custody

over PETER, J. (when located) be ordered, matters concerning the

I B F N e e O U VR A, VU i S Ao DRI [ ST PR U, SIS R

orders as the Court deems appropriate be entered.

UNLESS THE FAMILY IS WILLING AND ABLE TO PROVIDE THE
CHILDREN WITH A SAFE FAMILY HOME, EVEN WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF A
SERVICE PLAN, WITHIN A REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME, THEIR
RESPECTIVE PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS SHALL BE
SUBJECT TO TERMINATION.




DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, March 13, 1998

Acting Supervisor

[x] Approved as to form by the Department of the Attorney
General

Indian Blood: [ 1 Yes [X] No
Indian Child Pursuant to the Indian Child Welfare Act:
[ 1 Yes [X] No




( ' MARGERY S. BRONSTER 4750
Attorney General

ALEY K. AUNA, JR. 3391

Deputy Attorney General

Department of the Attorney
General, State of Hawaii

101 Aupuni Street
Suite 1014-A, Hilo Lagoon Centre

Hilo, Hawaii 96720
Telephone: (808) 933-4786

Attorneys for Petitioner .
IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE THIRD CIRCUIT
STATE OF HAWAIIL

PETITION FOR

FAMILY SUFPBRVISIOWN

In the Interest of

E—
.

N e M Mt e et 4 —— e

PETITION FOR FAMILY SUPERVISION

Children's Address

Mother's Name/Address

JAYLIN M. KEMA

Lot 24 Niihau Street
Nanawale Estates
Pahoa, Hawaii 96778
DOB: 4/10/70

sSN: R
Legal Father's Name/Address

Other's Name/Address/Relationship

PETER KEMA, SR., Stepfather
Lot 24 Niihau Street
Nanawale Estates

Pahoa, Hawaii 96778
DoB: 8/17/70 ssN: (NN
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CCMES NOW the Petitioner, a duly appointed social worker of
the Cepartment of Human Services ("DHS"), and hereby declares,
under penalty of perjury, that the statements made herein are
syie and correct to the best of Petiticner's knowledge,
infcrma-ion and kelief.

1. The —ccme within the provisions of

Sections 571-11(9), 587-11, and 587-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes

(lIHRSVI) .

2. _were found within the State of Hawaiil at

fhe time the follewing facts and circumstances (which have causged
—physical or psychclogical health or welfare to be
harmed or subject to threatened harm by the acts or cmissions of
family) occurred, were discovered, or were
reported to the DHS:

a. THREATENED HARM
There is a reascnable foreseeable substantial risk that

harm may occur to -based upon an assessment of the

criteria set forth in HRS 587-25, including but not limited to

the following facts:
CHILDREN'S VULNERABILITY

Y - ich

JAYLIN M KEMA 27) ("Mother"), PETER KEMA, SR. (27)

2. Whereabouts of PETER KEMA, JR. (almost 7), another half

brother. are unknown, and his absence is of great concern, as

shown in the following chronology:

a. —stated they have not seen the

V. U

b. At DHS request, Mother brought — to

the DHS office in June 1997 and stated that PETER JR., was

arm.

nracacioning” with an un-named paternal aunt and uncle until mid-
August :1997. Mother promised to bring PETER JR. to DHS offices

on August 15, 1997.
o) August 15, 1997 was Kuhio Day and DHS offices were

[



closed. When Petitioner later called, Mother's phone was

disconnected.

d. On August 21, 1997, —stated that

Mother tcld her she had contacted a maternal uncle of the child,
who lives on Cahu. He denied knowledge of the child's
whereabouts.

e. In October 1997, Petitioner confirmed that the child is
not enrolled in any public school in the state.

f. On December 23, 1997, the family's
worker stated that Mother told her offices that PETER JR. moved
ocout of the home in June 1997 and to Oahu in October 1997.

g. On January 21, 1998, Mother participated in an interview
by police Detective Nojiri. She stated she learned from
Stepfather only the day before that Stepfather "gave" PETER JR.
to a "lady in Aala Park," on Oahu, where he stated he stayed for
a month. Mother stated that Stepfather identified her as ROSE
KAUMAKUA.

h. Stepfather accompanied Mother to the police station on
January 21, 1998, aaaording to Mother, he declined to be
interviewed because he had chest pains.

i. stated on February 19, 1998, that
she recently tried to talk to Mother about PETER JR. but that
Motner was '"very aerensive, rude and unwilling to talk."

3. Mother had another child who died one day after birth,

in August 1996.

—
£ . Lokl AAUYUD L ad S h dllldae VS LSy Lo a il ALld bdie s aihe

-ere in DHS foster custody, mostly wit:h5—

— due to unexplained fractures to PETER, JR. Mother
and Stepfather each expressed resentment at that DHS involvement.

— stated that when they had —, for

the first two years their parents rarely visited them.

5. Efforts to interview—("Father"),

are continuing.
PARENTAL PROBLEMS
6. DHS is continuing to locate records of its 1991-1995

3



invelvement with the family, to ascertain the extent of parental

participation in services.

7. stated on January 21, 1998 that -
Msay things." ©$n February 19, 1998,
—stated that she is "scared that Mother and
[Step] Father might snap and hurt the other —' Nhen

we had talked with the other t— they look at the

parents, to see what they will say. When Peter [Stepfather]

vells, they jump."
6. Stepfather was ccnvicted of Burglary 2° in 1992.

SUPPCRT SYSTEM/SERVICES
7. Although are willing and able to

provide support for they and Mother are

not on speaking terms.
8. DHS-recommended services include psychclogical

evaluations of both Mother and Stepfather as well as follow-
through on recommendations made. Once Father is interviewed,

services, if any, will be recommended.

b. “ half siblings are the subject children in

a Chapter 587 proceeding, In the Interest of KEMA CHILDREN:

Peter, Jr., Born on May 1, 1991;—,_
W rc-s No. 98-034.

WHEREFORE, it is prayed that an inguiry be made into the
foregoing allegations and that action be taken pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 587, HRS, including but not limited to:

Family Supervision over _ be ordered, matters
concerning — and other family members be adjudicated,

and such other orders as the Court deems appropriate be entered.

UNLESS THE FAMILY IS WILLING AND ABLE TO PROVIDE THE
CHILDREN WITH A SAFE FAMILY HOME, EVEN WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF A
SERVICE PLAN, WITHIN A REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME, THEIR
RESPECTIVE PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS SHALL BE

SUBJECT TO TERMINATION.




DATED: Hilo, Hawaii, March 13, 1998

DHS Social Worker

[x] Approved as to form by the Department of the Attorney

General
Indian Blood: [ 1 Yes [X] No
Indian Child Pursuant to the Indian Child Welfare Act:

[ ] Yes [X] No



Date:

Children's Name

STATE OF HAWAI'I
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Family & Adult Services Division

SERVICE PLAN #1

March 16, 1998 FC-S Number:g

S pos: _ (N
DOB :_—_

This service plan is between JAYLIN M. A. KEMA ("Mother")

("Presumed Father") and PETER KEMA, SR. ("Stepfather") and

the Department of Human Services.

THIS PLAN WILL REMAIN IN EFFECT UNTIL FURTHER ORDER OF THE COURT.

I.

FOCUs:

Mother will participate in a support group for adult victims
of family violence, e.g. ATV woman's support group
participation;

Mother will participate in psychological evaluation and
recommendations for treatment, e.g. individual mental health
therapy to address issues such as former traumatic experiences
€.g. sex assault, to address and work through emotional
relationships of her nuclear family, towards development of a
healthy sense of self-confidence and other issues which are
defined in therapy;

Mother will participate in group parenting class to gain a
broader sense the parenting protective role towards the step-
siblings, Peter Jr. when he is found and S o nd

recognizing emotional and special

needs of each child;

Mother will work with the DHS social worker to assure R
receive the individual or family counseling to
address their emotional needs of loss and isolation;

Mother will provide a safe home with or without Father and
Stepfather living in the family home;

Father will participate in services if he chooses to be active
with NN “hich he has not.

Stepfather will participate in a psychological evaluation to
determine the extent of his depression and/or other emotional
factors; if anger management is recommmended, then the



II.

III.

Alternatives to Violence Program may provide the anger
management group component;

Mother and Stepfather may be referred to YWCA Family Support
Team, since the child's age for acceptance into the Family
Support Services program is seventeen. Dr. Horace Black may be
available to provide therapy for Stepfather.

Both Mother and Stepfather may participate in a parenting
class for young children which may be provided at YWCA or
Family Support Services.

GOAL:

X To make the family home safe and with a nurturing
environment forGEEEEESREENN -nd
their stepsiblings, Gyl :nd Peter Kema
Jr., when he is found, being a missing child.

OBJECTIVE:

Learn, practice and demonstrate communication skills with
other adults and children in GEEEEENEEESWEA home without
becoming violent and dangerous to the adults or children or
that foster depression in the parent or child;

Learn, practice and demonstrate nurturing parenting skills
enabling the parent to provide a safe family home for each
child.

Learn, practice and demonstrate healthier self-concepts
through 1life style of interest in others and healthier
understanding of the parents' earlier role as victim's within
their own families of origin;

IV. THINGS TO BE DONE;

Mother:

1. Attend the Women's Support Group for victims of domestic
violence at the Alternatives to Violence Program;

2. Attend and successfully complete parenting class for
intermediate school age children at Family Support Services;

3. Attend and participate in personal psychological evaluation

at Ohana Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy
of the report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;

Stepfather:



VI'

1. Attend the anger management classes at Alternatives to
Violence at ATV;

2. Participate in a psychological evaluation at the Ohana
Counseling Center with a written consent for a copy of the
report to be sent to DHS at East Hawaii;

3. Attend and participate in personal psychotherapy until
clinically discharged, e.g. with Dr. Horace Black;

C. DHS Social Worker:

1. Provide direction towards learning information
necessary to participate in classes and services;

2. Motivate Mother and Stepfather to enroll 1in
appropriate classes and counseling services.

3. Visit the family at the family home and provide basic
crisis and motivating counseling services at the time of
the visit.

OUTCOMES:

By the next court hearing, based on the progress and
evaluation of services in this plan, DHS will reassess the
goal and may recommend additional services.

YOUR PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL DUTIES AND RIGHTS CONCERNING _

WHO ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS

SERVICE PLAN MAY BE TERMINATED BY AN AWARD OF PERMANENT
CUSTODY UNLESS YOU ARE WILLING AND ABLE TO PROVIDE

WITH A SAFE FAMILY HOME WITHIN THE

REASONABLE PERIOD OF TIME SPECIFIED IN THIS SERVICE PLAN.

SIGNATURES:

This plan has been reviewed with me.

Jaylin M. Acol Kema Date é LSW Date
Mother DHS Social Worker

Date Peter Kema, Sr.
Presumed Father Stepfather



I certify I have reviewed this document.

mActing Supervisor Date
East Hawa take and Assessment Unit
Representing the Department of Human
Services




